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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

 

 

The Shareholders of 

Alliance Insurance P.S.C. 

Dubai 

United Arab Emirates 

 

 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the financial statements of Alliance Insurance P.S.C. (the “Company”), which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit or loss, 

statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 

year then ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 

policies.  

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and its 

cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

(‘IFRSs’). 

 

Basis for opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of Company’s financial statements in United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key audit matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C. (continued) 

 

Key audit matters (continued) 
 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
 

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities and 

reinsurance contract assets 
 

As at 31 December 2021, insurance contract 

liabilities and reinsurance contract assets 

amounted to AED 663.1 million and AED 160.4 

million respectively, as detailed in Note 10 to 

these financial statements. 

 

The valuation of these liabilities requires 

significant judgements to be applied and 

estimates to be made. Reinsurance contract 

assets includes amounts that the Company is 

entitled to receive in accordance with the 

reinsurance contracts and, more specifically, the 

share of the reinsurer in the insurance contract 

liabilities of the Company. 

This is particularly the case for those liabilities 

that are based on the best-estimate of technical 

reserves that includes ultimate cost of all claims 

incurred but not settled at a given date, whether 

reported or not, together with the related claims 

handling costs and related technical reserves 

along with their reinsurance recoveries. A range 

of models are applied by management, the 

internal actuary and independent external actuary 

to determine these provisions. Underlying these 

models are a number of explicit or implicit 

assumptions relating to the expected settlement 

amount and settlement patterns of claims. 

Changes in these assumptions can result in 

material impacts to the valuation of these 

liabilities.  

As a result of all the above factors, we consider 

the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and 

reinsurance contract assets as key audit matter. 

 

Our audit procedures included: 
 

• Assessing the design and implementation of key 

controls related to the integrity of the data used in 

the actuarial reserving process; 

• Evaluating and testing the claims handling and 

case reserve setting processes of the Company 

including allocation of the reinsurance portion of 

claims; 

• Evaluating and testing the data used in the 

actuarial reserving process; 

• Testing samples of claims case reserves by 

comparing the estimated amount of the case 

reserve to appropriate documentation, such as 

reports from loss adjusters, confirmations obtained 

from lawyers, reinsurance contracts etc.; 

• Reperforming reconciliations between the claims 

data recorded in the Company’s systems and the 

data used in the actuarial reserving calculations; 

• Evaluating the objectivity, skills, qualifications 

and competence of the independent external 

actuary; 

• Reviewing the engagement letter with the 

independent external actuary to determine if the 

scope was sufficient for audit purposes; and 

• Agreeing samples of unearned premiums to 

appropriate documentation. 
 

In addition, with the assistance of our internal actuarial 

specialists, we: 
 

• performed necessary reviews to ascertain whether 

the results are appropriate for valuation of 

insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance 

contract assets; 

• reviewed the actuarial report compiled by the 

independent external actuary of the Company and 

calculations underlying these provisions, 

particularly the following areas: 

• Appropriateness of the calculation methods and 

the model used (actuarial best practice)  

• Review of key assumptions  

• Consistency of assumptions used between 

valuation periods  

• General application of financial and 

mathematical rules. 
 

We assessed the disclosures in the financial statements 

about insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance 

contract assets to determine if they were in compliance 

with IFRSs. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C. (continued) 

 

Key audit matters (continued) 

 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

 

Valuation of investment properties 

 

Investment properties represented 15.1% of total 

assets as at 31 December 2021. Management 

appointed independent external valuers to 

determine the fair valuation of investment 

properties.  

 

The valuation of investment properties, as 

detailed in Note 7, requires significant 

judgement to be applied and estimates to be 

made by both management and the independent 

external valuers. Consequently, we considered 

this to be a key audit matter. 

 

 

 

Our audit procedures included: 

 

• We obtained an understanding of the process of 

determining the fair value of the investment 

properties; 

• We assessed the controls over the determination of 

the fair value of investment property to determine 

if they had been appropriately designed and 

implemented; 

• We assessed the competence, skills, qualifications 

and objectivity of the independent external valuers; 

• We reviewed the scope of the engagement between 

the external valuer and the Company to determine 

if this was sufficient for audit purposes; 

• We verified the accuracy, completeness and 

relevance of the input data used for deriving fair 

values; 

• We utilised our internal valuation experts on a 

sample basis to evaluate the methodology used and 

the appropriateness of key assumptions used in the 

investment property valuations; 

• We reperformed the mathematical accuracy of the 

valuations on a sample basis; 

• We agreed the results of the valuations to the 

amounts recorded in the financial statements; and 

• We assessed the adequacy of disclosures included 

in financial statements against the requirements of 

IFRSs. 

 

Other Information 

 

The Board of Directors and management is responsible for the other information, which comprises the 

Directors’ Report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The other information does 

not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C. (continued) 

 

 

Other Information (continued) 

 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this 

auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 

to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

 

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements  

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with IFRSs and their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the articles of 

association of the Company, United Arab Emirates (U.A.E.) Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), and 

U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error.  

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the internal control. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C. (continued) 

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management use of the going concern basis of accounting and 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the 

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), we report that for the year 

ended 31 December 2021: 

 

i) we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

 

ii) the financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable 

UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended);   

 

iii) the Company has maintained proper books of account; 

 

iv) the financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the 

Company;  

 

v) as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Company has investment in securities as at 31 

December 2021;  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C. (continued) 

 

 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued) 

 

vi) Note 28 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the 

terms under which they were conducted; 

 

vii) based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which 

causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 

2021 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), or its 

Articles of Association, which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 

December 2021; and 

 

viii) Note 26 to the financial statements discloses the social contributions made during the financial year 

ended 31 December 2021.  

 

Further, as required by the U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, and the related Financial Regulations for 

Insurance Companies issued by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”), we report that 

we have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purpose of our 

audit. 

 

 

 

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) 

 

 

 

 

Signed by: 

Samir Madbak 

Registration No. 386 

8 March 2022 

Sharjah, United Arab Emirates 
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Statement of financial position 

At 31 December 2021 

 
 Notes 2021 2020 

  AED AED 

    

ASSETS    

Property and equipment 6 3,804,097 4,261,569 

Investment properties 7 207,538,000 200,440,000 

Investments at amortised cost 8.1 333,077,974 335,622,610 

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive  

   income (FVOCI) 

 

8.2 6,888,342 5,175,180 

Loans guaranteed by life insurance policies 9 45,543,850 48,458,780 

Reinsurance contract assets 10 160,402,854 192,691,454 

Deferred acquisition costs 11 2,403,699 5,937,160 

Premium and insurance balances receivable 12 80,691,232 74,924,855 

Other receivables and prepayments 13 24,157,887 21,586,863 

Statutory deposits 14 10,228,125 10,000,000 

Deposits 15 416,653,053 498,471,334 

Cash and cash equivalents 16 82,812,969 48,691,929 
                                                    

Total assets  1,374,202,082 1,446,261,734 
                                                    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    

Share capital 17 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Statutory reserve 18.1 93,661,305 89,549,184 

Regular reserve 18.2 84,072,105 79,959,984 

General reserve 18.3 222,000,000 222,000,000 

Reinsurance reserve 18.4 1,770,456 869,651 

Cumulative change in fair value of FVOCI investments  (3,875,224) (5,588,386) 

Retained earnings  40,988,455 40,108,173 
                                                    

Total equity  538,617,097 526,898,606 
                                                    

Liabilities    

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 19 4,713,384 4,984,443 

Accounts payable 20 82,837,200 83,226,463 
                                                    

  87,550,584 88,210,906 
                                                    

Insurance liabilities    

Insurance liabilities 21 70,672,128 74,436,991 

Premium collected in advance  9,525,707 9,198,901 

Deferred commission income 22 4,685,895 4,707,241 
                                                    

  84,883,730 88,343,133 
                                                    

 

 

 

 

 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of profit or loss 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 
 Notes 2021 2020 

  AED AED 

    

Gross premium 29 304,047,160 323,267,756 
Reinsurance share of gross premiums 29 (180,160,900) (173,930,148) 
                                                    
Net premium  123,886,260 149,337,608 

Net change in unearned premium/unexpired risk 

   Reserves 

 

29 

 

18,772,493 

 

(11,183,621) 
                                                    
Net premium earned 29 142,658,753 138,153,987 

Commissions received  15,439,522 15,856,373 

Commissions paid  (11,243,865) (18,503,114) 

Movement in deferred acquisition costs/  

   commission income – net 

  

(3,512,116) 

 

1,335,461 
                                                                 
    

Gross underwriting income  143,342,294 136,842,707 
                                                    
    

Gross claims paid 30 (73,144,362) (41,116,877) 

Reinsurance share of insurance claims and loss  

   adjustment expenses 

 

30 

 

43,552,571 

 

19,517,804 
                                                                
    

Net claims paid 30 (29,591,791) (21,599,073) 
                                                                

Movement in claims under settlement reserve,  

   incurred but not reported reserve and  

   unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 

 

(2,744,902) (1,228,723) 

Earnings and cancellations of life insurance  

   Policies 

 

(94,756,938) (95,855,848) 

Decrease in mathematical reserves 10.2 31,342,227 40,672,950 
                                                                
    

Net claims incurred  (95,751,404) (78,010,694) 

                                                    

Net underwriting income  47,590,890 58,832,013 
                                                    
    

Income from financial investments 23 33,877,519 39,853,903 
Income from investments properties - net 24 16,592,758 6,390,828 
Foreign currency exchange gain  287,927 398,442 
Other income 25 2,145,530 1,581,655 
 

                                                   

Total investment and other income   52,903,734 48,224,828 
 

                                                   

Total income  100,494,624 107,056,841 
                                                    
    

General and administrative expenses 26 (28,082,946) (28,881,262) 

Net provision and expected credit loss  (688,014) (1,432,333) 

Bonuses and rebates (net of reinsurance)  (28,958,272) (32,233,421) 

Other operating expenses  (1,644,180) (2,369,619) 

                                                    

Total expenses  (59,373,412) (64,916,635) 

                                                    

Profit for the year  41,121,212 42,140,206 
                                                     
    

Basic and diluted earnings per share 27 41.12 42.14 

                                                     
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of comprehensive income 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

  2021 2020 

  AED AED 

    

Profit for the year  41,121,212 42,140,206 

                                                  

Other comprehensive income    
    
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 

   profit or loss 

 

   

Net change in fair value of equity instruments 

designated at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

  

 

1,713,162 

 

 

535,363 
                                                  
    
Total other comprehensive income for the year  1,713,162 535,363 
                                                  

Total comprehensive income for the year   42,834,374 42,675,569 

                                                    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of changes in equity 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

 

Share  

capital 

 

 

Statutory 

reserve 

 

 

Regular 

reserve 

General 

reserve 

 

 

 

Reinsurance 

reserve 

Cumulative 

change in fair 

value of 

FVOCI 

investments 

Retained 

earnings Total 

 AED AED AED AED             AED AED AED AED 

         

Balance at 31 December 2019  100,000,000 85,335,163 75,745,963 217,000,000 - (6,123,749) 43,414,150 515,371,527 

 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ --------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Profit for the year  - - - - - - 42,140,206 42,140,206 

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 535,363 - 535,363 

 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ --------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Total comprehensive income for the year  - - - - - 535,363 42,140,206 42,675,569 

Transfer to general reserve (Note 18.3) - - - 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 

Transfer to regular reserve (Note 18.2) - - 4,214,021 - - - (4,214,021) - 

Transfer to statutory reserve (Note 18.1) - 4,214,021 - - - - (4,214,021) - 

Transfer to reinsurance reserve (Note 18.4) - - - - 869,651 - (869,651) - 

Directors’ remuneration  - - - - - - (1,148,490) (1,148,490) 

Dividends paid (Note 35) - - - - - - (30,000,000) (30,000,000) 

 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ --------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Balance at 31 December 2020 100,000,000 89,549,184 79,959,984 222,000,000 869,651 (5,588,386) 40,108,173 526,898,606 

 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ----------------------------- --------------------------- 

Profit for the year  - - - - - - 41,121,212 41,121,212 

Other comprehensive income of the year - - - - - 1,713,162 - 1,713,162 

 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ --------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 1,713,162 41,121,212 42,834,374 

Transfer to regular reserve (Note 18.2) - - 4,112,121 - - - (4,112,121) - 

Transfer to statutory reserve (Note 18.1) - 4,112,121 - - - - (4,112,121) - 

Directors’ remuneration  - - - - - - (1,115,883) (1,115,883) 

Transfer to reinsurance reserve  

   (Note 18.4) - - - - 900,805 - (900,805) - 

Dividends paid (Note 35) - - - - - - (30,000,000) (30,000,000) 

 ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ ----------------------------- ----------------------------- ------------------------------ --------------------------- ----------------------------- 

Balance at 31 December 2021  100,000,000 93,661,305 84,072,105 222,000,000 1,770,456 (3,875,224) 40,988,455 538,617,097 

 ============= ============= ============== ============= ============= ============== ============ ============= 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of cash flows 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 

 
 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Cash flows from operating activities   

Profit for the year 41,121,212 42,140,206 

Adjustments for:   

   Depreciation of property and equipment 726,516 946,145 

   Property and equipment written off during the period 90,020 - 

   (Gain)/loss in fair value of investment properties (7,098,000) 5,346,000 

   Income from investment properties – net (9,494,758) (11,736,828) 

   Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 507,666 472,489 

   Amortisation of fees, premiums and discounts on investments 1,684,804 1,805,745 

   Dividend income  (285,525) (356,907) 

   Interest income from loans guaranteed by life insurance policies (2,997,655) (3,428,868) 

   Interest income from investments at amortised cost (18,972,742) (16,453,714) 

   Interest income from deposits (11,621,597) (19,614,414) 

   Net provision and expected credit loss 688,014 1,432,333 
                                                 

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (5,652,045) 552,187 

Increase in insurance, other receivables and prepayments (7,578,422) (15,607,406) 

Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance contract assets 32,288,600 (58,728,081) 

(Decrease)/increase in technical provisions  (79,658,418) 30,467,475 

(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable, insurance liabilities and 

premium collected in advance (3,967,029) 32,977,164 

Decrease/(increase) in deferred acquisition costs 3,533,461 (2,886,659) 

(Decrease)/increase in deferred commission income (21,346) 1,551,198 

                                                 
   

Cash used in operations (61,055,199) (11,674,122) 

Employees’ end of service indemnity paid (778,725) (730,956) 

                                                 

Net cash used in operating activities (61,833,924) (12,405,078) 

                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of cash flows (continued) 

For the year ended 31 December 2021  

 
 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Cash flows from investing activities   
Deposits encashed during the year 80,801,334 60,131,351 
Income received on deposits 12,854,528 28,253,951 
Income received from investment properties 7,487,314 8,721,412 
Income received from investments at amortised cost 18,972,742 12,933,121 
Dividend income received  285,525 356,907 
Net decrease in loans guaranteed by life insurance policies 5,912,585 4,095,977 

Purchase of property and equipment (359,064) (116,304) 
Purchases of financial investments at amortised cost - (101,081,228) 
                                                 
   
Net cash generated from investing activities 125,954,964 13,295,187 
                                                 
Cash flows from financing activities   

Dividend paid (30,000,000) (30,000,000) 
                                                 
   
Net cash used in financing activities (30,000,000) (30,000,000) 
                                                 
   

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 34,121,040 (29,109,891) 
   

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 48,691,929 77,801,820 
                                                 
   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 16) 82,812,969 48,691,929 
                                                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2021  

 

 
1. Segment information 

 
For management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments, property and liability insurance 

(general insurance) and insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations (life assurance). The general 

insurance segment comprises motor, marine, fire, engineering, medical, and general accident. The life assurance 

segment includes only long term life and group life. These segments are the basis on which the Company reports 

its primary segment information. Segment-wise information is disclosed below: 

 
1.1 Segment financial position for insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations  

 
  2021 2020 

  AED AED 

ASSETS    

Property and equipment  2,141,398 2,400,080 

Investment properties  129,812,500 123,595,000 

Investments at amortised cost  243,822,466 245,775,581 

Loans guaranteed by life insurance policies  45,543,850 48,458,780 

Reinsurance contract assets  3,177,607 2,492,524 

Deferred acquisition costs  159,269 198,033 

Premium and insurance balances receivable  900,533 477,780 

Other receivables and prepayments  11,668,759 10,892,996 

Statutory deposits  2,228,125 2,000,000 

Deposits  187,460,175 260,331,785 

Cash and cash equivalents  67,126,616 14,690,701 

Inter-division balance  109,549,634 122,794,303 
                                                    

Total assets  803,590,932 834,107,563 
                                                    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    

Share capital  50,000,000 50,000,000 

Statutory reserve  45,155,315 42,942,387 

Regular reserve  40,360,715 38,147,787 

General reserve  107,552,461 107,552,461 

Reinsurance reserve  45,856 23,780 

Retained earnings  21,412,790 18,998,514 
                                                    

Total equity  264,527,137 257,664,929 
                                                    

Liabilities    

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity  2,182,683 2,254,298 

Accounts payable  10,603,976 12,743,566 
                                                    

  12,786,659 14,997,864 
                                                    

Insurance liabilities    

Insurance liabilities  33,085,243 37,283,112 

Premium collected in advance  9,525,707 9,198,901 

Deferred commission income  1,669 2,279 
                                                    

  42,612,619 46,484,292 
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1. Segment information (continued) 

 
1.1 Segment financial position for insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations (continued) 

 
  2021 2020 

  AED AED 

    

Insurance contract liabilities – Technical provisions    

Unearned premium reserve  1,946,169 1,625,502 

Claims under settlement reserve  2,532,654 2,240,882 

Incurred but not reported reserve  792,327 1,236,511 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve  58,521 23,161 

Unexpired risk reserve  119,715 277,064 

Mathematical reserve  478,215,131 509,557,358 

                                                    

Total insurance contract liabilities  483,664,517 514,960,478 

                                                    

Total liabilities  539,063,795 576,442,634 
                                                    
    
Total equity and liabilities  803,590,932 834,107,563 
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1. Segment information (continued) 

 

1.2 Segment profit or loss for insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations 
 

  2021 2020 

  AED AED 
    

Gross premium  101,160,487 104,808,317 
Reinsurance share of gross premium  (4,415,193) (4,755,922) 
                                                    
    

Net premium  96,745,294 100,052,395 

Net change in unearned premium/unexpired risk reserve  101,812 (572,767) 
                                                    
    
Net premium earned   96,847,106 99,479,628 

Commissions received  832,383 913,201 

Commissions paid  (5,645,401) (8,412,965) 

Movement in deferred acquisition costs/commission  

   income - net 

  

(38,153) 

 

123,167 
                                                     
    

Gross underwriting income  91,995,935 92,103,031 
                                                    
    
Gross claims paid  (4,748,357) (3,502,113) 

Reinsurance share of insurance claims and loss  

   adjustment expenses  

  

2,100,261 

 

1,404,181 
                                                     

Net claims paid  (2,648,096) (2,097,932) 

Movement in claims under settlement reserve, incurred  

   but not reported reserve and unallocated loss  

   adjustment expense reserve 

  

 

537,005 

 

 

223 

Earnings and cancellations of life insurance policies  (94,756,938) (95,855,848) 

Decrease in mathematical reserves  31,342,227 40,672,950 
                                                     

Net claims incurred  (65,525,802) (57,280,607) 

                                                    

Net underwriting income  26,470,133 34,822,424 
                                                    
    
Income from financial investments  23,009,846 26,442,506 
Income from investments properties - net  12,846,982 5,497,951 
Foreign currency exchange gain  343,760 223,026 
Other income  150,980 86,128 
                                                    
Total investment and other income   36,351,568 32,249,611 
 

                                                   

Total income  62,821,701 67,072,035 

                                                    

    

General and administrative expenses  (10,930,034) (11,529,592) 

Net provision and expected credit loss  (483,411) (319,761) 

Bonuses and rebates (net of reinsurance)  (28,958,272) (32,233,421) 

Other operating expenses  (320,704) (355,456) 

                                                    

Total expenses  (40,692,421) (44,438,230) 

                                                    

Profit for the year  22,129,280 22,633,805 
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1. Segment information (continued) 

 
1.3 Segment financial position for property and liability insurance 

 
  2021 2020 

  AED AED 

    

ASSETS    

Property and equipment  1,662,699 1,861,489 

Investment properties  77,725,500 76,845,000 

Investments at amortised cost  89,255,508 89,847,029 

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive  

   income (FVOCI) 

  

6,888,342 

 

5,175,180 

Reinsurance contract assets  157,225,247 190,198,930 

Deferred acquisition costs  2,244,430 5,739,127 

Premium and insurance balances receivable  79,790,699 74,447,075 

Other receivables and prepayments  12,489,128 10,693,867 

Statutory deposits  8,000,000 8,000,000 

Deposits  229,192,878 238,139,549 

Cash and cash equivalents  15,686,353 34,001,228 
                                                    

Total assets  680,160,784 734,948,474 
                                                    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Equity    

Share capital  50,000,000 50,000,000 

Statutory reserve  48,505,990 46,606,797 

Regular reserve  43,711,390 41,812,197 

General reserve  114,447,539 114,447,539 

Reinsurance reserve  1,724,600 845,871 

Cumulative change in fair value of FVOCI investments  (3,875,224) (5,588,386) 

Retained earnings  19,575,665 21,109,659 
                                                    

Total equity  274,089,960 269,233,677 
                                                    

Liabilities    

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity  2,530,701 2,730,145 

Accounts payable  72,233,224 70,482,897 

Inter-division balance  109,549,634 122,794,303 
                                                    
  184,313,559 196,007,345 
                                                    

Insurance liabilities    

Insurance liabilities  37,586,885 37,153,879 

Deferred commission income  4,684,226 4,704,962 

                                                    

  42,271,111 41,858,841 
                                                    

 

  



ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C.    20 
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1. Segment information (continued) 

 

1.3 Segment financial position for property and liability insurance (continued) 

 
  2021 2020 

  AED AED 

    
 

Insurance contract liabilities – Technical provisions    

Unearned premium reserve  67,709,511 92,772,796 

Claims under settlement reserve  86,099,455 117,518,050 

Incurred but not reported reserve  24,754,106 16,385,818 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve  853,718 558,025 

Unexpired risk reserve  69,364 613,922 

                                                    

Total insurance contract liabilities  179,486,154 227,848,611 

                                                    

Total liabilities  406,070,824 465,714,797 
                                                    
    
Total equity and liabilities  680,160,784 734,948,474 
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1. Segment information (continued) 

 

1.4 Segment profit or loss for property and liability insurance 
 

  2021 2020 

  AED AED 
    

Gross premium  202,886,673 218,459,439 
Reinsurance share of gross premium  (175,745,707) (169,174,226) 
                                                    
    

Net premium  27,140,966 49,285,213 

Net change in unearned premium/unexpired risk reserve  18,670,681 (10,610,854) 
                                                    
    
Net premium earned  45,811,647 38,674,359 
    

Commissions received  14,607,139 14,943,172 

Commissions paid  (5,598,464) (10,090,149) 

Movement in deferred acquisition cost and commission  

   income – net 

  

(3,473,963) 

 

1,212,294 
                                                     

Gross underwriting income  51,346,359 44,739,676 
                                                    
    
Gross claims paid  (68,396,005) (37,614,764) 

Reinsurance share of insurance claims and loss  

  adjustment expenses  

  

41,452,310 

 

18,113,623 
                                                     
    
Net claims paid  (26,943,695) (19,501,141) 

Movement in claims under settlement reserve, incurred  

   but not reported reserve and unallocated loss     

   adjustment expense reserve  

  

 

(3,281,907) 

 

 

(1,228,946) 
                                                     
    

Net claims incurred  (30,225,602) (20,730,087) 

                                                    

Net underwriting income  21,120,757 24,009,589 
                                                    
    

Income from financial investments  10,867,673 13,411,397 
Income from investments properties – net  3,745,776 892,877 
Foreign currency exchange (loss)/gain  (55,833) 175,416 
Other income  1,994,550 1,495,527 
 

                                                   

Total investment and other income   16,552,166 15,975,217 
 

                                                   

Total income  37,672,923 39,984,806 

                                                    
    

General and administrative expenses  (17,152,912) (17,351,670) 

Net provision and expected credit loss  (204,603) (1,112,572) 

Other operating expenses  (1,323,476) (2,014,163) 

                                                    

Total expenses  (18,680,991) (20,478,405) 

                                                    

Profit for the year  18,991,932 19,506,401 
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2. General information 

 

Alliance Insurance P.S.C. (the “Company") is a Public Shareholding Company which was originally established 

in Dubai on 1 July 1975 as a limited liability company under the name of Credit and Commerce Insurance 

Company. The Company was subsequently incorporated in Dubai on 6 January 1982 as a limited liability company 

under an Emiri Decree. The Company was converted to a Public Shareholding Company (P.S.C.) in January 1995, 

in accordance with the UAE Federal Commercial Companies Law No. (8) of 1984 (as amended). The Company’s 

shares are listed on the Dubai Financial Market. 

 

The licensed activities of the Company are issuing short term and long-term insurance contracts. The insurance 

contracts are issued in connection with property, motor, aviation and marine risks (collectively known as general 

insurance) and individual life (participating and non-participating), group life, personal accident, medical and 

investment linked products. 

 

The registered address of the Company is Warba Centre, P.O. Box 5501, Dubai, United Arab Emirates. 

 

Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 on Commercial Companies (the “New Companies Law”) was issued on 20 September 

2021 and will come into effect on 2 January 2022, to entirely replace Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 on Commercial 

Companies, as amended (the “2015 Law”). The Company is in the process of reviewing the new provisions and 

will apply the requirements thereof no later than one year from the date on which the amendments came into effect. 

 

Federal Decree Law No. (24) of 2020 which amends certain provisions of the U.A.E Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 

on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organisation of its Operations, as amended, was issued on 27 

September 2020 and the amendments came into effect on 2 January 2021. Effective 2 January 2021, the Insurance 

Sector became under the supervision and authority of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”). 

 

 

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) 

 

3.1 New and revised IFRSs applied by the Company 

 
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after  

1 January 2021, have been aopted in these financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not 

had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for 

future transactions or arrangements. 
 

• Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16— 

In the current year, the Company adopted the Phase 2 amendments Interest Rate Benchmark 

Reform—Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these 

amendments enables the Company to reflect the effects of transitioning from interbank offered 

rates (IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest rates (also referred to as ‘risk free rates’ or RFRs) 

without giving rise to accounting impacts that would not provide useful information to users of 

financial statements. The Company has not restated the prior period. Instead, the amendments 

have been applied retrospectively with any adjustments recognised in the appropriate components 

of equity as at 1 January 2021. 

• COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) — In the current financial year, 

the Company has applied the amendment to IFRS 16 (as issued by the Board in May 2021) in 

advance of its effective date. 
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3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) 

(continued) 

 

3.2 New and revised IFRS standards and interpretations but not yet effective 

 

The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 

effective. 

• IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. 
 

IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with 

comparative figures required. Early application is permitted, provided that the entity also applies 

IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. Retrospective application is 

required.  

 

• Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 ‘Investments in 

Associates and Joint Ventures’ (2011) deals with situations where there is a sale or contribution 

of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. (effective date deferred 

indefinitely, early adoption permitted). 
 

• IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ – Amendments on Classifications. Effective for 

annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 
 

• Amendments relating IAS 16, IAS 37, IFRS 3 and some annual improvements on IFRS 1, IFRS 

9, IAS 41 and IFRS 16 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022). 
 

• IFRS 4 relating to amendments regarding the expiry date of the deferral approach. The fixed 

expiry date for the temporary exemption in IFRS 4 from applying IFRS 9 is now 1 January 2023. 
 

• Amendments to IFRS 9 that clarifies that for the purpose of performing the ‘’10 per cent test’ for 

derecognition of financial liabilities in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a 

borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees 

paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The amendments are 

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with earlier application 

permitted. 
 

• Amendments regarding Disclosure of Accounting policies (IAS 1 and IFRS practice statement 

2), amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’—

Definition of Accounting Estimates and Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’—Deferred Tax 

related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2023). 

 

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the 

Company’s financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, 

interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 17, mentioned below, may have no material impact on the 

financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application. 

 

Management anticipates that IFRS 17 will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements for the annual 

period beginning 1 January 2023. The application of IFRS 17 may have significant impact on amounts 

reported and disclosures made in the Company’s financial statements in respect of its insurance contracts. 

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the application of this standard 

until the Company performs a detailed review. 

 

Management expects that majority of the short-term contracts issued by the Company will be eligible for the 

premium allocation approach, while for individual life contracts both the general measurement approach and 

the variable fee approach will be used as applicable. 
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 

The summary of significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are 

summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to each of the years presented. 

 

4.1 Statement of compliance 

 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and comply with 

applicable requirements of the Federal Law No. (6) of 2007 Concerning the Establishment of the Insurance 

Authority & Organisation of the Insurance Operations, the Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 Concerning the 

Commercial Companies (as amended), Insurance Authority Board Decision No. (25) of 2014 Pertinent to 

Financial Regulations for Insurance Companies and Insurance Authority' Board of Directors Decision No. 

(23) of 2019 Concerning Instructions Organizing Reinsurance Operations. 

 

4.2 Basis of preparation  

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for revaluation of certain 

financial instruments and investment properties as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost 

is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. 

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 

observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, 

the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take 

those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for 

measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such basis, except for 

share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the 

scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as 

net realizable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36. 

 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2 or 3 

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of 

the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 

the entity can access at the measurement date; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability. 

 

The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, with a distinction based 

on expectations regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) and 

more than twelve months after the reporting date (non-current), presented in the notes. 

 

The principal accounting policies are set out below. 
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

4.3 Insurance contracts 

 

4.3.1 Classification 

 

The Company issues contracts that transfer either insurance risk or both insurance and financial risks. 

 

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) 

by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely 

affects the policyholder are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is significant if an insured event 

could cause the Company to pay significant additional benefits due to happening of the insured event 

compared to its non-happening. 

 

Insurance contracts may also transfer some financial risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change 

in one or more of a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of 

prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable 

that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. 

 

Contracts where insurance risk is not significant are classified as investment contracts. Once a contract is 

classified as an insurance contract it remains classified as an insurance contract until all rights and obligations 

are extinguished or expired. 

 

4.3.2 Recognition and measurement 

 

Insurance contracts are classified into two main categories, depending on the nature of the risk, duration of 

the risk and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed. These contracts are general insurance contracts 

and life assurance contracts. 

 

General insurance contracts 

 

Gross premiums written reflect business incepted during the year, and exclude any fees and other amounts 

collected with and calculated based on premiums. These are recognised when underwriting process is 

complete and policies are issued. Premiums are recognized as revenue (earned premiums) proportionately 

over the period of coverage. 

 

The earned portion of premium is recognised as an income and are shown in the profit or loss before deduction 

of commission. Premiums are earned from the date of attachment of risk over the indemnity period and 

unearned premium is calculated using the basis described below: 

 

Life assurance contracts 

 

In respect of the short term life assurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) 

proportionately over the period of coverage. The portion of the premium received in respect of in-force 

contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned premium 

liability. Premiums are shown before the deduction of the commission. 

 

In respect of long term life assurance contracts, premium are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) when 

they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.  

 

Premiums for life policies are recognised when it is paid by the contract holder. 
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

4.3 Insurance contracts (continued) 

 

4.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 

 

Life assurance contracts (continued) 

 

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in future is recorded when the premiums 

are recognised. The liability is based on the assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses 

and investment income that are established at the time the contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviation 

is included in the assumptions. 

 

Where a life assurance contract has a single premium or limited number of premium payments due over a 

significantly shorter period than the period during which the benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums 

payable over the valuation premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of 

unexpired insurance risk of the contract in-force or for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the 

amount of future benefits expected to be paid.  

 

The liabilities are recalculated at the end of each reporting period using the assumptions established at the 

inception of the contract. 

 

Claims and benefits payable to contract holders are recorded as expenses when they are incurred.  

 

Unearned premium reserve 

 

The unearned premium considered in the insurance contract liabilities comprise the estimated proportion of 

the gross premiums written which relates to the periods of insurance subsequent to the statement of financial 

position date. UPR is calculated using the 1/365 method except for marine cargo and general accident.  

 

The UPR for marine cargo is recognised as fixed proportion of the written premiums as required in the 

financial regulation issued under UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, and UPR for general accident assumes a 

linear increase in risk with the duration of the project such that the risk faced is 100% at the expiry of the 

contract, the rate at which the premium is earned is deemed to increase at the same rate at which the risk faced 

increases over the lifetime of the policy. Unearned premiums for individual life business are considered by 

the Company's actuary in the calculation for life reserve fund. 

 

Claims 

 

Claims incurred comprise the settlement and the internal and external handling costs paid and changes in the 

provisions for outstanding claims arising from events occurring during the financial period. Where applicable, 

deductions are made for salvage and their recoveries. 

 

Claims outstanding comprise provisions for the Company's estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims 

incurred but unpaid at the reporting date whether reported or not, and related internal and external claims 

handling expense reduced by expected salvage and other recoveries. Claims outstanding are assessed by 

reviewing individual reported claims. Provisions for claims outstanding are not discounted. Adjustments to 

claims provisions established in prior periods are reflected in the financial statements of the period in which 

the adjustments are made. The methods used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly. Provision is 

also made for any claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) at the date of statement of financial position 

based on actuarial estimate obtained from an independent actuary using a range of standard actuarial claim 

projection techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse 

deviation as required by the regulations. 
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

4.3 Insurance contracts (continued) 

 

4.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 

 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 

 

A provision for unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE), which cannot be allocated to specific claims, 

is made at the reporting date based on actuarial estimates obtained from an independent actuary. 

 

Unexpired risk reserve/liability adequacy test 

 

Provision is made for unexpired risk arising from general insurance contracts where the expected value of 

claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the reporting date exceeds the 

unearned premiums provision and already recorded claim liabilities in relation to such policies. The provision 

for premium deficiency is calculated by reference to classes of business which are managed together, after 

taking into account the future investment return on investments held to back the unearned premiums and 

claims provisions. 

 

Reinsurance 

 

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on 

one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance 

contracts are recognised as reinsurance contracts. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements 

are classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract 

holder is another insurer, are included in insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Company is entitled 

under its reinsurance contracts are recognised as reinsurance contract assets.  

 

The Company cedes reinsurance in the normal course of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss 

potential through the diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities and income and expense arising from ceded 

reinsurance contracts are presented separately from the assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related 

insurance contracts because the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direct 

obligations to its policyholders. 

 

Amounts due to and from reinsurers are accounted for in a manner consistent with the related insurance 

policies and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance premiums are deferred and 

expensed using the same basis as used to calculate unearned premium reserves for related insurance policies. 

The deferred portion of ceded reinsurance premiums is included in reinsurance assets. 

 

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment on a regular basis. A reinsurance asset is deemed impaired if 

there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, that the Company 

may not recover all amounts due, and that event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the 

Company will receive from the reinsurer. Impairment losses on reinsurance assets are recognised in statement 

of profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred. 

 

Profit commission in respect of reinsurance contracts is recognised on an accrual basis. Reinsurance assets or 

liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations/rights are extinguished or expire or when the 

contract is transferred to another party. 
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

4.3 Insurance contracts (continued) 

 

4.3.2 Recognition and measurement (continued) 

 

Deferred acquisition cost 

 

For general insurance contracts, the deferred acquisition cost asset represents the position of acquisition costs 

which corresponds to the proportion of gross premiums written that is unearned at the reporting date. 

Commission income related to underwriting activities are recognised on a time proportion basis over the 

effective period of policy using the same basis as described for unearned premium reserve. 

 

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing 

existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognised as expenses when 

incurred. 

 

Insurance receivables and payables 

 

Amounts due from and to policyholders, agents and reinsurers are financial instruments and are included in 

insurance receivables and payables, and not in insurance contract liabilities or reinsurance assets. 

 

Mathematical reserve 

 

This reserve is determined by the independent actuarial valuation of future policy benefits. Actuarial 

assumptions include a margin for adverse deviation and generally vary by type of policy, year of issue and 

policy duration. Mortality and withdrawal rate assumptions are based on experience. Adjustments to the 

balance of this reserve are affected by charges or credits to income. Certain generated returns are accrued and 

provided for in this reserve. 

 

Unit linked liabilities 

 

For unit linked policies, liability is equal to the policy account values. The account value is the number of 

units times the bid price. 

 

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets 

 

Insurance contract liabilities towards outstanding claims are made for all claims intimated to the Company 

and still unpaid at the statement of financial position date, in addition for claims incurred but not reported and 

Life assurance fund. Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims 

incurred but not settled at the end of the reporting period after reduction for the expected value of salvage and 

other recoveries. Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, 

therefore the ultimate cost of claims cannot be known with certainty at the end of the reporting period. The 

liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or catastrophic reserves 

is recognised. The liability is derecognised when it is expired, discharged or cancelled. 

 

The reinsurers' portion towards the above outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reported and unearned 

premium is classified as reinsurance contract assets in the financial statements. 

 

Salvage and subrogation reimbursements 

 

Estimates of salvage and subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in the measurement of 

the insurance liability for claims. 
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4.4 Revenue (other than insurance revenue) 

 

Revenue (other than insurance revenue) comprises the following: 

 

Fee and commission income 

 

Fee and commissions received or receivable which do not require the Company to render further service are 

recognised as revenue by the Company on the effective commencement or renewal dates of the related 

policies. 

 

Dividend income 

 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment has been established.  

 

Interest income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 

to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time 

basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that 

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

Rental income 

 

Rental income from investment properties which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

 

4.5 General and administrative expenses 

 

Direct expenses are charged to the respective departmental revenue accounts. Indirect expenses are allocated 

to departmental revenue accounts on the basis of gross premiums. Other administration expenses are charged 

to profit or loss as unallocated general and administrative expenses. 

 

4.6 Leasing 

 

The Company as lessee 

 

For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which 

economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed as the leases are for short term (defined as leases with 

a lease term of 12 months or less). 

 

4.7 Foreign currencies 

 

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment 

in which the Company operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial statements, the 

results and financial position of the Company are expressed in Arab Emirates Dirhams (“AED”), which is the 

functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements. 
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4.7 Foreign currencies (continued) 

 

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s 

functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the 

transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are 

retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated 

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

 

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. 

 

4.8 Employee benefits 

 

Annual leave and leave passage 

 

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entitlement to annual leave and leave passage as 

a result of services rendered by eligible employees up to the end of the year. 

 

Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 
 

Provision is made for the full amount of end of service benefits due to non-UAE national employees in 

accordance with the U.A.E Labour Law and is based on current remuneration and their period of service at 

the end of the reporting period. 

 

Defined contribution plan 

 

UAE national employees of the Company are members of the Government-managed retirement pension and 

social security benefit scheme pursuant to UAE Labour Law No. 7 of 1999. The Company is required to 

contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to 

fund the benefits. The employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution 

calculation salary” respectively, to the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the 

retirement pension and social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are 

charged to income statement. 

 

4.9 Property and equipment 

 

Land is not depreciated and is stated at cost. 

 

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets, on 

the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

 

Other property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment 

losses. 

 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than capital work in progress and land, over 

their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 

depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for 

on a prospective basis. 
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4.9 Property and equipment (continued) 

 

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement 

of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement. 
 

The useful lives considered in the calculation of depreciation for the assets are 4 years except for building 

which has a useful life of 10 years. 

 

4.10 Investment properties 

 

Investment properties are properties are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for 

both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in providing services or for administrative 

purposes. Investment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with 

any change therein recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 

The Company determines fair value on the basis of valuations provided by two independent valuers who hold 

a recognised and relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in the location and category 

of the investment properties being valued. 
 

Investment properties is derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 

properties is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment properties are recognised in the profit or 

loss in the period of retirement or disposal. 

 

Transfers are made to/or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 

investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value 

at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company 

accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date 

of change in use. 

 

4.11 Impairment of tangible assets 

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 

impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 

the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where 

a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to 

individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units 

for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 
 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of 

future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 

the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in 

which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
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4.11 Impairment of tangible assets (continued) 

 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 

increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does 

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 

for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately 

in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the 

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 

 

4.12 Provisions 

 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 

can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 

obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 

carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 

and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

4.13  Premium and insurance balances receivable 
 
Premium and insurance balances receivable are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for 

estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the profit or loss during that period when there is objective 

evidence of that the asset is impaired. Premium and insurance balances receivable are derecognised when the 

derecognition criteria for financial assets have been met. 
 
4.14  Insurance liabilities 
 
Insurance liabilities are recognized when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the 

consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, insurance liabilities are 

measured at mortised cost, as deemed appropriate. 

 

4.15 Financial instruments 

 

The Company initially recognises insurance receivables and insurance payables on the date at which they are 

originated. All other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated at fair value 

through profit or loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at which the Company becomes party to the 

contractual provision of the instrument. 

 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, 

transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 
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4.15 Financial instruments (continued) 

 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

 

At inception, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value. 

 

A financial asset qualifies for amortised cost measurement only if it meets both of the following two conditions: 

 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual 

cashflows; and 

• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

If a financial asset does not meet both of these conditions, then it is measured at fair value. 

 

The Company makes an assessment of a business model at portfolio level as this reflect the best way the 

business is managed and information is provided to the management. 

 

In making an assessment of whether an asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets 

in order to collect contractual cash flows, the Company considers: 
 

• management's stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice; 

• how management evaluates the performance of the portfolio; 

• whether management's strategy focus on earning contractual interest revenue; 

• the degree of frequency of any expected asset sales; 

• the reason of any asset sales; and 

• whether assets that are sold are held for an extended period of time relative to their contractual maturity or 

are sold shortly after acquisition or an extended time before maturity. 

 

Financial assets including cash and cash equivalents, deposits/statutory deposits, and investments at amortised 

cost are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 

Equity instruments at FVOCI 

 

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. 

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value 

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value reserve. 

The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments in equity 

instruments/funds, but reclassified to retained earnings. 

 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s 

right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the 

cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit 

or loss. 
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4.15 Financial instruments (continued) 

 

Debt instruments at amortised cost  

 

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets 

are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. 

The Company reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models 

have changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period, the Company has not 

identified a change in its business models.  

 

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows 

and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding (SPPL) are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

 

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 

recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 

method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss 

allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before 

adjusting for any loss allowance.  

 

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are subject to impairment. 

 

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 
 

Financial assets at FVTPL are:  

(i) assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and  

(ii) assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or  

held to collect and sell; or  

(iii) assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.  
 

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit 

or loss.  

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances with the banks and deposits with original 

maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 

their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of short-term commitments. Cash and cash 

equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. 

 

Classification as debt or equity 
 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 

substance of the contractual arrangement. 
 

Equity instruments 
 

Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue 

of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. 
 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of 

direct issue costs. 
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4.15 Financial instruments (continued) 

 

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Provision for expected credit loss 

 

The Company recognises a loss for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are 

measured at amortised cost, deposits and bank balances. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at 

each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial 

instrument.  

 

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL (expected credit losses) for other receivables. The expected 

credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s 

historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 

conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting 

date, including time value of money where appropriate.  

 

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of 

all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract 

and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for 

which they are measured as 12-month ECL: 

 

• Debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and  

• Other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition. 

 

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to 

the globally understood definition of 'investment grade'. The Company utilises the general approach to 

calculate ECL against its deposits with banks and for its investments in debt securities which is dependent on 

the rating of the banks and bonds as determined by an external credit rating agency. 
 
12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are 

possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Lifetime ECLs are ECLs that result from all possible 

default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

 

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables: 

 

• Probability of default (PD); 

• Loss given default (LGD); 

• Exposure at default (EAD). 
 

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. 

They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information. 

 

The Company has adopted simplified approach in case of other receivables. In case of financial assets for 

which simplified approach is adopted lifetime expected credit loss is recognised. 
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Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (continued) 

 

Provision for expected credit loss (continued) 

 

Details of these statistical parameters/inputs are as follows: 

 

PD - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. 

 

LGD - The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given 

time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would 

expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of 

the EAD. 

 

EAD - The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account 

expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date. 

 

Forward-looking information 

 

The measurement of expected credit losses considers information about past events and current conditions as 

well as reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and 

application of forward-looking information requires significant judgement. 

 

Macroeconomic factors 

 

In its models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such 

as: GDP, GDP annual growth rate, unemployment rates, inflation rates, interest rates, etc. Various 

macroeconomic variables considered are Brent, CPI, Stock, Inflation and Loans to private sector. 

 

The inputs and models used for calculating expected credit losses may not always capture all characteristics 

of the market at the date of the financial statements. 
 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 

 

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows: 

 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets. 

 

Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 

expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual customers, the 

Company has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is irrecoverable. For 

corporate customers, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount 

of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no 

significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be 

subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts 

due. 
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4.15 Financial instruments (continued) 
 

Fair value of financial instruments 

 

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined 

by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations, without any deduction for transaction costs. 

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate 

valuation techniques. Such techniques may include:  

- Using recent arm's length market transactions; 

- Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same A discounted 

cash flow analysis or other valuation models. 

 

Credit-impaired financial assets 

 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt 

securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired' when one or more events that 

have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence 

that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 
 

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 

- a breach of contract such as a default; 

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider 

otherwise; 

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

 
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 
 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 

of the assets. The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these 

financial assets in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal 

to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in other 

comprehensive income with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated gain recognised in 

other comprehensive income is recycled to the profit or loss upon derecognition of the assets. 

 

Financial liabilities 

 

Insurance liabilities, account payable are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’ and are initially measured at 

fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities (except for deferred commission income) are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised 

on an effective yield basis except for short term payable when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.  

 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of 

allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 

estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a 

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
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4.16 De-recognition of financial instruments 

 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risk and 

rewards of the ownership are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially 

all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control on the financial asset. Any interest in 

transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is carried or retained by the Company is 

recognised as separate asset or liability in the statement of financial position. On derecognition of financial 

asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion 

of the asset transferred), and consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability 

assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial 

position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assets or a portion 

of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not 

derecognised. 
 

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company continues to recognise the 

asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes 

in the value of the transferred asset. 
 

In certain transactions the Company retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee. 

The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognised 

for the servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than 

adequate (liability) for performing the services. 
 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligation are discharged or cancelled 

or expire. 

 

4.17 Dividend distribution 

 

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial 

statements in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s shareholders. 

 

4.18 Offsetting 

 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 

when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts audit 

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or of gains and losses 

arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Company's trading activity. 

 

 

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4 to these financial 

statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates. 
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period 

or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 

5.1 Critical accounting judgements 

 

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 5.2 below), that 

management has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 

5.1.1 Classification of investments 

 

Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as FVOCI, or 

Investments at amortised cost.  

 

Equity instruments are classified as FVOCI securities when they are considered by management to be 

strategic equity investments that are not held to benefit from changes in their fair value and are not held for 

trading. 

 

Management is satisfied that the Company’s investments in securities are appropriately classified.  

 

5.1.2 Classification of properties 

 

In the process of classifying properties, management has made various judgments. Judgments are needed to 

determine whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property and equipment, property under 

development and/or property held for sale. Management develops criteria so that it can exercise that judgment 

consistently in accordance with the definitions of investment property, property and equipment, property 

under development and property held for sale. In making its judgment, management has considered the 

detailed criteria and related guidance set out in IAS 2 – Inventories, IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment, 

and IAS 40 – Investment Property, with regards to the intended use of the property. 

 

5.1.3 Business model assessment 

 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model 

test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are 

managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting 

all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance 

measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers 

of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair 

value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the 

reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which 

the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model 

for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate 

whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those 

assets. No such changes were required during the years presented. 

 

5.1.4 Insurance contract classification 

 

Contracts are classified as insurance contracts where they transfer significant insurance risk from the holder 

of the contract to the Company. 
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5.1 Critical accounting judgements (continued) 

 

5.1.4 Insurance contract classification (continued) 

 

There are a number of contracts sold where the Company exercises judgement about the level of insurance 

risk transferred. The level of insurance risk is assessed by considering whether there are any scenarios with 

commercial substance in which the Company is required to pay significant additional benefits. These benefits 

are those which exceed the amounts payable if no insured event were to occur. These additional amounts 

include claims liability and assessment costs, but exclude the loss of the ability to charge the holder of the 

contract for future services. 

 

5.1.5 Significant increase in credit risk 

 

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL assets for stage 

2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial 

recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether 

the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased, the Company takes into account qualitative and 

quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information. 

 
5.1.6  Going concern 
 
Management has made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied 

that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 

management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's 

ability to continue a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. 

 

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

 

5.2.1 Individual life insurance 

 

The assumptions used in the actuarial valuations for life fund are consistently applied and these assumptions 

are based on mortality and withdrawal rate assumptions. 

 

5.2.2 Provision for outstanding claims, incurred or not 

 

The estimation of ultimate liability arising from the claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s 

most critical accounting estimate. There are sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate 

of the liability that the Company will eventually pay for such claims. Estimates have to be made at the end of 

the reporting period for both the expected ultimate cost of claims reported and for the expected ultimate cost 

of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”). Liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the 

input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Company and management estimates based on past 

claims settlement trends for the claims incurred but not reported. At the end of each reporting period, prior 

year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes are made to the provision. 
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5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

 

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

 

5.2.2 Provision for outstanding claims, incurred or not (continued) 

 

The Company has performed an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on its contractual arrangements and 

provisions for outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported which included regular sensitivity 

analyses. The Company determined that there is no material impact on its risk position and provision balances 

for outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported, as at 31 December 2021. The Company will 

continue monitoring its claims experience and the developments around the pandemic and revisit the 

assumptions and methodologies in future reporting periods. 

 

5.2.3 Calculation of loss allowance 

 

When measuring ECL the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, which is 

based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect 

each other. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. Forward looking factor considered 

as the GDP of U.A.E. 

 

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the 

likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions 

and expectations of future conditions. 

 

5.2.4 Liability adequacy test 

 

At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of 

insurance contract liabilities. The Company makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash flows 

and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such 

liabilities in evaluating the adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the profit or 

loss. 
 

5.2.5 Valuation of investment properties 

 

The fair value of investment properties were determined by external independent property valuers, having 

appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the 

properties being valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Company's investment 

properties portfolio annually. 

 

5.2.6  Depreciation of property and equipment  

 

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life, which is based on expected 

usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the repair and maintenance program and technological 

obsolescence arising from changes and the residual value. Management has not considered any residual value 

as it is deemed immaterial.  
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5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

 

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

 

5.2.7 Impairment of Premium and insurance balances receivable  

 

The Company has adopted deferral approach on application of IFRS 9 on the IFRS 4 generated financial 

assets and therefore, ECL has not been applied to premium and insurance balances receivable and incurred 

loss model under IAS 39 has been applied. An estimate of the collectible amount of premium and insurance 

balances receivable is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For individually 

significant amounts, the estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually 

significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length 

of time past due, based on historical recovery rates. 

 

The Company is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurers. The Company 

monitors on a quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with credit ratings and solvency strength of its 

reinsurers. Any significant credit risk increase could result in impairment of premium and insurance balances 

receivable. 

 

   
6. Property and equipment 

  

 

Land 

 

 

Building 

 

Furniture 

and fixtures 

 

Office 

equipment 

 

Motor  

vehicles 

Capital 

work-in 

progress 

 

 

Total 

 AED AED AED AED AED AED AED 

        

Cost        

At 31 December 2019 2,470,555 1,691,577 4,598,226 4,462,999 634,238 180,000 14,037,595 

Additions during the year - - 11,500 74,784 - 30,020 116,304 

Transfers - 60,000 - 60,000 - (120,000) - 

                                                                                                                                       

At 31 December 2020 2,470,555 1,751,577 4,609,726 4,597,783 634,238 90,020 14,153,899 

Additions during the year - - 21,575 26,795 - 310,694 359,064 

Write off during the year - - - - - (90,020) (90,020) 

                                                                                                                                       
    

At 31 December 2021 2,470,555 1,751,577 4,631,301 4,624,578 634,238 310,694 14,422,943 

                                                                                                                                       

        

Accumulated depreciation     

At 31 December 2019 - 680,772 4,363,165 3,404,258 497,990 - 8,946,185 

Charge for the year - 184,158 108,897 537,475 115,615 - 946,145 

                                                                                                                                       

At 31 December 2020 - 864,930 4,472,062 3,941,733 613,605 - 9,892,330 

Charge for the year - 184,158 80,059 441,675 20,624 - 726,516 

                                                                                                                                       

At 31 December 2021 - 1,049,088 4,552,121 4,383,408 634,229 - 10,618,846 

                                                                                                                                       

        

Carrying amount 

At 31 December 2021 

 

2,470,555 

 

702,489 

 

79,180 

 

241,170 

 

9 

 

310,694 

 

3,804,097 

                                                                                                                                       
        
At 31 December 2020 2,470,555 886,647 137,664 656,050 20,633 90,020 4,261,569 

                                                                                                                                       

 

As at 31 December 2021, the cost of fully depreciated property and equipment that was still in use amounted to  

AED 8,430,227 (2020: AED 6,970,805). 
 

Property and equipment are located in U.A.E. 
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7. Investment properties 
 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance, at the beginning of the year 200,440,000 205,786,000 

Change in fair value  7,098,000 (5,346,000) 

                                              

Balance, at the end of the year 207,538,000 200,440,000 

                                                   

 

Investment properties comprises two commercial buildings in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. 

 

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties as at 31 December 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of 

valuations carried on the reporting date by independent valuers who are not related to the Company and have 

appropriate qualifications and recent market experience in the valuation of properties in the United Arab Emirates. 

 

The fair value was determined based on the net income capitalisation method, where the market rentals of all 

lettable units of the properties are assessed by reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units. The 

capitalisation rate adopted is determined by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuers for similar 

properties in the locality and adjusted based on the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective 

property. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current 

use. The Company’s investment properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 

2021 (2020: Level 3). 

 

The rental income and operating expenses relating to these properties are as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Rental income (Note 24) 14,618,645 16,628,576 

Maintenance expenses (5,123,887) (4,891,748) 

                                              

Net rental income 9,494,758 11,736,828 
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8. Financial investments  

 

8.1 Investments at amortised cost 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Quoted bonds 334,709,806 336,394,610 

Provision for expected credit loss (Note 8.1.1) (1,631,832) (772,000) 

                                              

 333,077,974 335,622,610 
                                                   

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Inside UAE 199,927,331 201,205,117 

Outside UAE 133,150,643 134,417,493 

                                              

 333,077,974 335,622,610 
                                                   

 

The bonds carry interest at the rates of 4.75% to 7.50% (2020: 4.75% to 7.50%) per annum and interest is payable 

semi-annually/annually. The Company holds these investments with the objective of receiving the contractual cash 

flows over the instrument life. The fair value of quoted bonds as at 31 December 2021 amounted to AED 

344,811,625 (2020: AED 345,798,204).  

 

8.1.1  Movements in provision for ECL are as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at the beginning of the year 772,000 568,654 

Charge during the year 859,832 203,346 

                                              

 1,631,832 772,000 
                                                   

 

8.2 Investments carried at FVOCI 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Quoted equity securities in UAE 6,888,342 5,175,180 
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8. Financial investments (continued) 

 

8.3 Movements in financial investments 

 

The movements in investments at FVOCI and investments at amortised cost are as follows: 

 

  

FVOCI 

At 

amortised cost 

 

Total 

 AED AED AED 

    

At 31 December 2019 4,639,817 236,550,473 241,190,290 

Purchases - 101,081,228 101,081,228 

Amortised - (1,805,745) (1,805,745) 

Changes in fair value 535,363 - 535,363 

Provision for expected credit loss - (203,346) (203,346) 

                                                                    

At 31 December 2020 5,175,180 335,622,610 340,797,790 

Amortised - (1,684,804) (1,684,804) 

Changes in fair value 1,713,162 - 1,713,162 

Provision for expected credit loss - (859,832) (859,832) 

                                                                    

At 31 December 2021 6,888,342 333,077,974 339,966,316 

                                                                             

 

 

9. Loans guaranteed by life insurance policies 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at beginning of the year 48,458,780 49,125,889 

Loans sanctioned during the year 24,752,267 28,713,847 

Repayment during the year (24,921,679) (26,590,030) 

Unrealized interest on loans (2,745,518) (2,790,926) 

                                              

Balance at end of the year 45,543,850 48,458,780 

                                                     
 

 

The interest on loans guaranteed by life insurance policies is 8% (2020: 8%). 
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10. Technical provisions 
 2021 2020 

  

Insurance 

contract 

liabilities 

 

Reinsurance 

contract 

assets 

 

 

 

Net 

 

Insurance 

contract 

liabilities 

 

Reinsurance 

contract 

assets 

 

 

 

Net 

 AED AED AED AED AED AED 
       

Insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations       

Unearned premium reserve 1,946,169 (1,215,685) 730,484 1,625,502 (950,555) 674,947 

Claims under settlement reserve 2,532,654 (1,374,725) 1,157,929 2,240,882 (644,682) 1,596,200 

Incurred but not reported reserve (“IBNR”) 792,327 (587,197) 205,130 1,236,511 (897,287) 339,224 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve (“ULAE”) 58,521 - 58,521 23,161 - 23,161 

Unexpired risk reserve 119,715 - 119,715 277,064 - 277,064 

Mathematical reserve (Note 10.2) 478,215,131 - 478,215,131 509,557,358 - 509,557,358 

                                                                                                                                      

 483,664,517 (3,177,607) 480,486,910 514,960,478 (2,492,524) 512,467,954 

                                                                                                                                      

Property and liability insurance       

Unearned premium reserve 67,709,511 (57,147,105) 10,562,406 92,772,796 (64,085,363) 28,687,433 

Claims under settlement reserve 86,099,455 (80,370,950) 5,728,505 117,518,050 (113,304,283) 4,213,767 

Incurred but not reported reserve (“IBNR”) 24,754,106 (19,641,070) 5,113,036 16,385,818 (12,744,258) 3,641,560 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve (“ULAE”) 853,718 - 853,718 558,025 - 558,025 

Unexpired risk reserve 69,364 (66,122) 3,242 613,922 (65,026) 548,896 

                                                                                                                                      

 179,486,154 (157,225,247) 22,260,907 227,848,611 (190,198,930) 37,649,681 

                                                                                                                                      

Total       

Unearned premium reserve 69,655,680 (58,362,790) 11,292,890 94,398,298 (65,035,918) 29,362,380 

Claims under settlement reserve 88,632,109 (81,745,675) 6,886,434 119,758,932 (113,948,965) 5,809,967 

Incurred but not reported reserve (“IBNR”) 25,546,433 (20,228,267) 5,318,166 17,622,329 (13,641,545) 3,980,784 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve (“ULAE”) 912,239 - 912,239 581,186 - 581,186 

Unexpired risk reserve 189,079 (66,122) 122,957 890,986 (65,026) 825,960 

Mathematical reserve (Note 10.2) 478,215,131 - 478,215,131 509,557,358 - 509,557,358 
                                                                                                                                      

 663,150,671 (160,402,854) 502,747,817 742,809,089 (192,691,454) 550,117,635 
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10. Technical provisions (continued) 

 
10.1 Summary of actuary’s report on technical provisions 
 

 2021 2020 

  

 

As per actuary 

As per 

financial 

statements 

 

 

As per actuary 

 

As per financial 

statements 

 AED AED AED AED 
     

Insurance contract liabilities - Technical provisions     

Unearned premium reserve 69,655,680 69,655,680 94,398,298 94,398,298 

Claims under settlement reserve 88,632,109 88,632,109 119,758,932 119,758,932 

Incurred but not reported reserve (“IBNR”) 25,546,433 25,546,433 17,622,329 17,622,329 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve (“ULAE”) 912,239 912,239 581,186 581,186 

Unexpired risk reserve 189,079 189,079 890,986 890,986 

Mathematical reserve (Note 10.2) 478,215,131 478,215,131 509,557,358 509,557,358 

                                                                                               

Total technical provisions – gross 663,150,671 663,150,671 742,809,089 742,809,089 

                                                                                            

     

Unearned premium reserve 11,292,890 11,292,890 29,362,380 29,362,380 

Claims under settlement reserve 6,886,434 6,886,434 5,809,967 5,809,967 

Incurred but not reported reserve (“IBNR”) 5,318,166 5,318,166 3,980,784 3,980,784 

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve (“ULAE”) 912,239 912,239 581,186 581,186 

Unexpired risk reserve 122,957 122,957 825,960 825,960 

Mathematical reserve (Note 10.2) 478,215,131 478,215,131 509,557,358 509,557,358 

                                                                                                 

Total technical provisions – net 502,747,817 502,747,817 550,117,635 550,117,635 

                                                                                              
 

This note provides a summary of actuarial technical provisions calculated and certified by external actuary. 
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10. Technical provisions (continued) 

 

10.2 Mathematical reserve 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

At January 509,557,358 550,230,308 

Shortage of income over expenditure for the year in the long-

term business 

 
(8,812,578) 

 

(17,533,111) 

Surplus available (22,529,649) (23,139,839) 

                                              

 478,215,131 509,557,358 

                                              

Movement in life assurance fund (31,342,227) (40,672,950) 

                                                     

 

Mathematical reserve represents amounts set aside to meet the aggregate amount of the liabilities of the Company 

in relation to its long-term life business as at 31 December 2021. 

 

Actuary determined the liability arising out of the actuarial valuation of individual life (life assurance fund) to be 

as follows: 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Net liabilities under insurance policies 377,177,894 394,093,203 

Provision for terminal bonus to policyholders 101,037,237 115,464,155 

                                              

 478,215,131 509,557,358 

                                                     

 

 

11. Deferred acquisition costs 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,937,160 3,050,501 

Acquisition costs paid during the year 7,710,404 21,389,773 

Amortisation charge for the year (11,243,865) (18,503,114) 

                                              

Balance at the end of the year 2,403,699 5,937,160 

                                                     

 

 

12. Premium and insurance balances receivable 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Due from policyholders 52,590,134 47,102,097 

Due from insurance or reinsurance companies 4,730,505 3,961,037 

Due from brokers or agents 26,857,160 27,134,174 

Less: Provision for impairment (Note 12.1) (3,486,567) (3,272,453) 

                                              

 80,691,232 74,924,855 
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12. Premium and insurance balances receivable (continued) 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Inside UAE:   

Due from policy holders 52,590,134 47,102,097 

Due from insurance or reinsurance companies 2,214,276 1,843,751 

Due from brokers or agents 26,857,160 27,134,174 

Less: Provision for impairment (Note 12.1) (3,486,567) (3,272,453) 

                                              

 78,175,003 72,807,569 

                                                     

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Outside UAE:   

Due from insurance or reinsurance companies 2,516,229 2,117,286 

                                                     

 

12.1 Movement in the provision for impairment 

 

Total provision for impairment at year end amounts to AED 3,486,567 (2020: AED 3,272,453) against 

premiums and insurance balances receivable.  

 

The movement in the provision for impairment is as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at beginning of the year 3,272,453 1,956,166 

Provision during the year 221,096 1,383,952 

Amounts written off as uncollectible during the year (6,982) (67,665) 

                                              

Balance at end of the year 3,486,567 3,272,453 
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12. Premium and insurance balances receivable (continued) 

 

Ageing of receivables is as follows: 
 

  

 

Due from 

policyholders 

Due from 

insurance or 

reinsurance 

companies 

 

Due from 

brokers or 

agents 

 AED AED AED 

    

Inside UAE:    

Less than 30 days 7,149,045 405,448 7,303,848 

31 – 90 days 10,538,349 473,830 9,247,254 

91 – 180 days 19,672,634 112,664 5,501,011 

181 – 270 days 4,121,355 476,058 943,806 

271 – 360 days 2,128,177 96,694 2,546,959 

More than 360 days 8,980,574 649,582 1,314,282 
                                                                    
    

At 31 December 2021 52,590,134 2,214,276 26,857,160 

                                                                            

 

  

 

Due from 

policyholders 

Due from 

insurance or 

reinsurance 

companies 

 

Due from 

brokers or 

agents 

 AED AED AED 

Outside UAE:    

Less than 30 days - 1,008,296 - 

31 – 90 days - 718,400 - 

91 – 180 days - 663,523 - 

181 – 270 days - 8,253 - 

271 – 360 days - 16,064 - 

More than 360 days - 101,693 - 
                                                                    
    

At 31 December 2021 - 2,516,229 - 

                                                                            

 
 
  



ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C.    51 
 

 

Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) 
 

 

12. Premium and insurance balances receivable (continued) 

 

Ageing of receivables is as follows (continued): 
 

  

 

Due from 

policyholders 

Due from 

insurance or 

reinsurance 

companies 

 

Due from 

brokers or 

agents 

 AED AED AED 

    

Inside UAE:    

Less than 30 days 2,709,838 200,575 10,885,324 

31 – 90 days 22,863,903 310,775 7,949,066 

91 – 180 days 6,693,965 604,232 6,517,960 

181 – 270 days 5,582,887 46,509 751,418 

271 – 360 days 1,187,281 86,944 317,449 

More than 360 days 8,064,223 594,716 712,957 
                                                                    
    

At 31 December 2020 47,102,097 1,843,751 27,134,174 
                                                                            

 

  

 

Due from 

policyholders 

Due from 

insurance or 

reinsurance 

companies 

 

Due from 

brokers or 

agents 

 AED AED AED 

Outside UAE:    

Less than 30 days - 1,077,514 - 

31 – 90 days - 96,508 - 

91 – 180 days - 372,231 - 

181 – 270 days - 76,760 - 

271 – 360 days - 423,600 - 

More than 360 days - 70,673 - 
                                                                    
    

At 31 December 2020 - 2,117,286 - 

                                                                            

 

No interest is charged on overdue balances and no collateral is taken on insurance receivables. 

 

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Adequate credit assessment is 

made before accepting an insurance contract from any counterparty. 
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13. Other receivables and prepayments 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Accrued interest from investments at amortised cost 7,632,207 7,632,207 

Rent receivable from tenants 6,362,750 5,331,480 

Prepayments 1,955,764 1,638,449 

Receivable from employees 338,019 358,499 

Refundable deposits 166,255 161,870 

Others 9,182,304 7,943,770 

Less: Expected credit loss (1,479,412) (1,479,412) 

                                              

 24,157,887 21,586,863 

                                                     
 

 
14. Statutory deposits 

 

As at 31 December 2021, deposit of AED 10,228,125 (2020: AED 10,000,000) has been placed with one of the 

Company’s bankers, in accordance with Article 42 of UAE Federal Law No. 6 of 2007 on Establishment of the 

Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations. This deposit has been pledged to the bank as security 

against a guarantee issued by the Bank in favor of the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”) 

for the same amount. This deposit cannot be withdrawn without prior approval of the Central Bank of the United 

Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”) and bears an interest rate ranging from 3% to 3.5% per annum (2020: 3% to 3.5% 

per annum). 

 

 

15. Deposits 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Short term deposits with banks in UAE 351,847,691 432,877,150 

Accrued interest on short term deposits 1,488,617 2,483,548 

                                              

Subtotal A (current portion) 353,336,308 435,360,698 

   

Long term deposits with banks in UAE 61,600,000 61,600,000 

Accrued interest on long term deposits 2,036,983 2,274,983 

                                              

Subtotal B (non-current portion) 63,636,983 63,874,983 

Provision for expected credit loss (C) (Note 15.1) (320,238) (764,347) 

                                              

Grand total (A+B+C) 416,653,053 498,471,334 
                                                   

 

Deposits comprise fixed deposits with original maturity term of 12 months and above with banks in UAE bearing 

annual interest at rates ranging from 0.45% to 5.25% (31 December 2020: 0.93% to 5.25%).  
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15. Deposits (continued) 

 

15.1 Movement in the provision for expected credit losses as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at beginning of the year 764,347 465,916 

(Reversal)/provision during the year (444,109) 298,431 

                                              

Balance at end of the year 320,238 764,347 

                                                     

 

 

16. Cash and cash equivalents 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Cash on hand 241,305 844,894 

Current accounts with banks 82,645,491 47,869,667 

Provision for expected credit losses (Note 16.1) (73,827) (22,632) 

                                              

 82,812,969 48,691,929 

                                                     

 

16.1 Movement in the provision for expected credit losses as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at beginning of the year 22,632 53,600 

Provision/(reversal) during the year 51,195 (30,968) 

                                              

Balance at end of the year 73,827 22,632 

                                                     

 

 

17. Share capital 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Authorised, issued and fully paid 1,000,000 shares of AED 100 

each (31 December 2020: 1,000,000 shares of AED 100 each) 

 
100,000,000 

 

100,000,000 

                                                     

 

 

18. Reserves 

 

18.1 Statutory reserve 
 

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 (as amended), a 

minimum of 10% of the Company’s profit for the year should be transferred to a non-distributable statutory 

reserve. As per the Company’s Articles of Association, such transfers are required until the balance on the 

statutory reserve equals 100% of the Company’s paid-up share capital. Accordingly, AED 4,112,121 (2020: AED 

4,214,021) was transferred to the statutory reserve on 31 December 2021. 
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18. Reserves (continued) 

 

18.2 Regular reserve  

 

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, at least 10% of the Company’s profit must be 

transferred to regular reserve. Such transfers are required until the balance on this reserve equals 100% of 

the Company’s paid-up share capital, or until the transfer is discontinued by resolution of the shareholders. 

Accordingly, AED 4,112,121 (2020: AED 4,214,021) was transferred to the regular reserve on 31 

December 2021. 

 

18.3 General reserve 

 

The Board of Directors approved the transfer of AED nil in 2021 (2020: AED 5,000,000) to a general 

reserve which can be utilized for any purpose approved by the shareholders as per the Articles of 

Association of the Company. 

 

18.4 Reinsurance reserve 

 

In accordance with Article 34 issued by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”), Board 

of Directors Decision No. (23) of 2019 the Company has created a reinsurance reserve amounting to AED 

900,805 in 2021 (2020: AED 869,651), being 0.5% of the total reinsurance premiums ceded by the 

Company in the United Arab Emirates in all classes of business. The Company shall accumulate such reserve 

year on year and not dispose off the reserve without the written approval of the Director General of the 

Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”). 

 

 

19. Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,984,443 5,242,910 

Charge for the year 507,666 472,489 

Paid during the year (778,725) (730,956) 

                                              

Balance at the end of the year 4,713,384 4,984,443 

                                                     

 

 

20. Accounts payable 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Payables inside UAE 13,198,618 11,922,715 

Payables outside UAE 50,260,463 51,844,991 

Other payables (Note 20.1) 19,378,119 19,458,757 

                                              

 82,837,200 83,226,463 
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20. Accounts payable (continued) 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Inside UAE:   

Accounts payable to:   

Insurance companies 4,509,190 3,846,438 

Insurance brokers 8,689,428 8,076,277 

Other payables (Note 20.1) 19,378,119 19,458,757 

                                              

 32,576,737 31,381,472 

                                                     

 

Outside UAE:   

Accounts payable to:   

Insurance companies 490,310 108,472 

Reinsurance companies 49,770,153 51,736,519 

                                              

 50,260,463 51,844,991 

                                                     

 

The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the 

credit time frame. 

 

20.1 Other payables 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Provision for staff benefits 3,852,328 4,206,410 

Rent received in advance 851,584 711,875 

Accruals and provisions 904,186 856,021 

Other payables 13,770,021 13,684,451 

                                              

 19,378,119 19,458,757 

                                                    

 

 

21. Insurance liabilities 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Maturity payable 22,239,978 23,837,282 

Bonus and surrenders payable 9,543,287 12,138,543 

Claims payable 3,310,124 2,280,033 

Other insurance payables 35,578,739 36,181,133 

                                              

 70,672,128 74,436,991 

                                                     

  



ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C.    56 
 

 

Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) 
 

 

22. Deferred commission income 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Balance at the beginning of the year  4,707,241 3,156,043 

Commission received during the year  15,424,597 17,407,571 

Commission income earned during the year  (15,445,943) (15,856,373) 

                                              

Balance at the end of the year  4,685,895 4,707,241 

                                                     

 

 

23. Income from financial investments 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Interest income from deposits 11,621,597 19,614,414 

Interest income from investments at amortised cost 18,972,742 16,453,714 

Interest income from loans guaranteed by life insurance policies 2,997,655 3,428,868 

Dividend income from investments carried at FVOCI 285,525 356,907 

                                              

 33,877,519 39,853,903 

                                                     

 

 

24. Income from investment properties - net 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Rental income 14,618,645 16,628,576 

Change in fair value of investment properties (Note 7) 7,098,000 (5,346,000) 

Maintenance expenses (5,123,887) (4,891,748) 

                                              

 16,592,758 6,390,828 

                                                     

 

 

25. Other income 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Other income and administration income 2,145,530 1,581,655 
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26. General and administrative expenses 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Staff costs 20,360,844 20,252,625 

Rent 1,530,852 1,602,661 

Bank charges 1,305,547 1,379,054 

Depreciation on property and equipment (Note 6) 726,516 946,145 

Communication expenses 365,934 417,226 

Travel and conveyance 22,685 22,551 

Other expenses 3,770,568 4,261,000 

                                              

 28,082,946 28,881,262 

                                                     

 

Other expenses include social contributions made during the year amounted to AED 150,000 (2020: AED 

1,000,000). 

 

 

27. Basic and diluted earnings per share 

 

 2021 2020 

   

Profit for the year (in AED) 41,121,212 42,140,206 

                                                      

   
Weighted average number of shares 1,000,000 1,000,000 
                                                      
   
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in AED) 41.12 42.14 
                                                      

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the number of weighted average 

shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is equivalent to basic earnings 

per share as the Company did not issue any new instrument that would impact earnings per share when 

executed. 

 

 
28. Related party transactions  

 

Related parties include the Company’s major Shareholders, Directors and businesses controlled by them and 

their families over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management 

personnel. 

 

28.1 At the end of the reporting period, amounts due from related parties are as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Due from related parties (Key Management personnel and 

entities under common control) 

1,264,268 1,253,171 

                                                 

 

The above balances are included as part of premiums and insurance balances receivables. 
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28. Related party transactions (continued) 

 

28.2 During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties: 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Premiums from related parties (Key Management personnel and 

entities under common control) 

  
4,585,846 

 

4,758,533 

Claims to related parties (Key Management personnel and 

entities under common control) 

 
114,783 

 

763,142 

 

Transactions are entered with related parties at rates agreed with management. 

 

28.3 Compensation of key management personnel  

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Directors’ remuneration 1,115,883 1,148,490 

Short term benefits 1,650,000 1,950,000 

                                               

Total compensation paid to the key management personnel 2,765,883 3,098,490 

                                                     

 

Pursuant to Article 169 of Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended) and in accordance with the Articles of 

Association of the Company, the Directors are entitled for remuneration which shall not exceed 10% of the 

net profits after deducting depreciation and reserves. 
 

29. Net premium earned 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Gross premium   

Insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations:   

Individual life 96,789,840 101,311,751 

Group life 4,370,647 3,496,566 

                                              

Total 101,160,487 104,808,317 

                                              

 

Property and liability insurance:   

Medical 32,150,824 28,798,140 

Fire 13,578,278 12,701,156 

Motor 14,609,769 35,871,577 

Marine 4,513,469 5,028,457 

Miscellaneous 138,034,333 136,060,109 

                                              

Total 202,886,673 218,459,439 

                                              

 

Total gross premium (a) 304,047,160 323,267,756 
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29. Net premium earned (continued) 
 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 
 

Reinsurance share of gross premium   

Insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations:   

Individual life 1,621,903 2,733,765 

Group life 2,793,290 2,022,157 

                                              

Total 4,415,193 4,755,922 

                                              

 

Property and liability insurance:   

Medical 19,404,359 15,670,519 

Fire 13,065,244 12,104,270 

Motor 1,860,480 1,659,193 

Marine 4,457,625 5,035,578 

Miscellaneous 136,957,999 134,704,666 

                                              

 175,745,707 169,174,226 

                                              

Total reinsurance share of gross premium (b) 180,160,900 173,930,148 

                                              

Change in unearned premium/unexpired risk reserves (c) 18,772,493 (11,183,621) 

                                              

Total net premium earned (a-b+c) 142,658,753 138,153,987 
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30. Net claims paid 

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Gross claims paid   

Insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations:   

Individual life 2,097,475 2,294,244 

Group life 2,650,882 1,207,869 

                                              

Total 4,748,357 3,502,113 

                                              

 

Property and liability insurance:   

Medical 31,746,735 17,403,079 

Fire 722,727 2,364,717 

Motor 17,689,162 14,782,623 

Marine 3,906,995 663,579 

Miscellaneous 14,330,386 2,400,766 

                                              

Total 68,396,005 37,614,764 

                                              

 

Total gross claims paid (a) 73,144,362 41,116,877 

                                              

 

Reinsurance share of insurance claims and loss  

   adjustment expenses 

  

Insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations:   

Individual life 155,889 460,860 

Group life 1,944,372 943,321 

                                              

Total 2,100,261 1,404,181 

                                              

 

Property and liability insurance:   

Medical 23,344,247 12,204,573 

Fire 704,627 2,133,279 

Motor 6,087 1,186,988 

Marine 3,359,520 638,246 

Miscellaneous 14,037,829 1,950,537 

                                              

 41,452,310 18,113,623 

                                              

Total reinsurance shares of insurance claims and loss  

   adjustment expenses (b) 

 
43,552,571 

 

19,517,804 

                                              

Total net claims (a-b) 29,591,791 21,599,073 
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31. Contingent liabilities  

 

 2021 2020 

 AED AED 

   

Letters of guarantee 10,567,186 10,853,330 

                                                     

 

The Company in common with the significant majority of insures, is subject to litigation in normal course 

of its business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, does not expect that the outcome of these 

court cases will have a material impact on the Company’s financial performance or financial position. 

 

 

32. Insurance risk  

 

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty 

of the amount of the resulting claim. By the nature of an insurance contract, this risk is influenced by the 

frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of claims. The 

objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.  

 

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, 

the principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit 

payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency 

or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual 

number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using 

statistical techniques. 

 

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative 

variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be 

affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its 

insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these 

categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected 

outcome.  

 

The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and 

proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well 

diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to 

enforce appropriate risk selection criteria, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. 

 

32.1 Frequency and severity of claims 

 

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, re-price the risk, impose deductibles and reject 

the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for 

payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). 

 

Property insurance contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial replacement value of the 

properties and contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable 

on occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents 

and time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of 

claims under these policies. Property insurance contracts are subdivided into four risk categories: fire, 

business interruption, weather damage and theft. The insurance risk arising from these contracts is not 

concentrated in any of the territories in which the Company operates, and there is a balance between 

commercial and personal properties in the overall portfolio of insured buildings.  
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32. Insurance risk (continued) 

 

32.1 Frequency and severity of claims (continued) 

 

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance 

arrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set limit of AED 250,000 for 

motor and AED 12,000 for medical class of business in any one policy. The Company has survey units 

dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to 

improve risk claims. The risks are reviewed individually at least once a year and adjusted to reflect the latest 

information on the underlying facts, current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other 

factors. The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to 

unpredictable developments. 

 

32.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments 

 

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insured 

events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract 

term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision 

includes incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater 

degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where 

information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be apparent to the insured until many 

years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For some insurance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total 

liability is high and will typically display greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because 

of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported 

claims not yet paid, the Company considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the 

cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Apart from internal actuary, the Company 

has involved independent external actuarial valuer’s as well. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis 

or projected separately in order to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on 

the rest of the portfolio. 

 

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected 

subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has 

appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing 

claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability 

established. 

 

The amount of insurance claims is particularly sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development 

of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. Insurance contracts are also subject to the emergence of 

new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at the reporting date.  

 

Where possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This 

provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections 

given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most 

appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and 

the extent of the development of each accident year.  

 

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation 

techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims 

experience using predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time 

passes. The initial loss-ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based 

on previous years’ experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market 

experience and historical claims inflation. The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year 

(before reinsurance) are analysed by type of risk where the insured operates for current and prior year 

premiums earned. 
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32. Insurance risk (continued) 

 

32.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued) 

 

The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year before and after reinsurance are analysed 

below by type of risk where the insured operates for current and prior year premium earned. 

 

 2021 2020 

Type of risk Gross loss ratio Net loss ratio Gross loss ratio Net loss ratio 
     

Life insurance 4.69% 2.74% 3.34% 2.10% 
     

Non-life insurance 33.71% 99.27% 17.22% 39.57% 
 

There are no single insurance contract, or a small number of related contracts that might cause significant 

loss to the company in case of occurrence of such insured liability. 
 

Below table shows the impact on profit of a change of 1% in the loss for both gross and net of reinsurance 

recoveries would be as follows: 

 2021 2020 

Type of risk Gross loss 

ratio 

Net loss 

ratio 

Gross loss 

ratio 

Net loss 

ratio 

 AED AED AED AED 
     

Impact of an increase of 1% in loss ratio (2,309,028) (942,945) (3,643,846) (1,277,385) 
     

Impact of a decrease of 1% in loss ratio 2,309,028 942,945 3,643,846 1,277,385 

 

32.3 Process used to decide on assumptions 
 

The risks associated with these insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that 

complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. Internal data is derived mostly from the Company’s quarterly 

claims reports and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting period 

to derive data for the contracts held. The Company has reviewed the individual contracts and in particular 

the industries in which the insured companies operate and the actual exposure years of claims. This 

information is used to develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the projections of 

the ultimate number of claims.  
 

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of 

the technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this 

has meant that different techniques or combinations of techniques have been selected for individual accident 

years or groups of accident years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary 

and independent external actuaries are also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company. 

 

32.4 Claims development process 
 

Claims development tables are disclosed in order to put the unpaid claims estimates included in the financial 

statements into a context, allowing comparison of the development claims provisions with those seen in 

previous years. 
 

In effect, the table highlights the Company’s ability to provide an estimate of the total value of claims. This 

table provides a review of current estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how the estimated 

claims have changed at subsequent reporting or accident year ends. The estimate is increased or decreased 

as losses are paid and more information becomes known about the frequency and severity of unpaid claims. 

Data in the table related to acquired businesses is included from the acquisition date onwards. 
 

The Company believes that the estimates of total claims outstanding as of the end of 2021 are adequate. 

However, due to the inherent uncertainties in the reserving process, it cannot be assured that such balances 

will ultimately prove to be adequate. 
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32.4 Claims development process (continued) 

 
The table below illustrates development of the net outstanding and incurred but not reported claims at the end of each year together with cumulative payments subsequent 
to the year of accident: 

 
  

Prior years 
 

2017 
 

2018 
 

2019 
 

2020 
 

2021 
 AED AED AED AED AED AED 
       

At the end of each reporting year - 18,647,402 23,802,251 26,859,096 23,158,971 32,884,091 
One year later - 19,970,601 20,495,050 33,019,324 20,355,676 - 
Two years later - 20,637,918 30,726,839 24,256,781 - - 
Three years later - 20,773,823 30,091,839 - - - 
Four years later  20,737,535 - - - - 
Prior years 44,317,117 - - - - - 
                                                                                                                                           
Estimate of cumulative claims 44,317,117 20,737,535 30,091,839 24,256,781 20,355,676 32,884,091 

Cumulative payments to date (44,317,117) (20,737,535) (30,089,611) (23,885,691) (19,376,439) (23,395,105) 
                                                                                                                               
Total reserves included in the  
   balance sheet 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2,228 

 
371,090 

 
979,237 

 
9,488,986 

                                                                                                                            
 
The above table does not include cumulative claims for insurance of persons and fund accumulation operations.  
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32. Insurance risk (continued) 

 

32.5 Concentration of insurance risk 

 

Substantially all of the Company’s underwriting activities are carried out in the United Arab Emirates. In 

common with other insurance companies, in order to minimise financial exposure arising from large insurance 

claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into arrangement with other parties for 

reinsurance purposes.  

 

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial 

condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, 

activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the 

Company from its obligations to policyholders. The Company remains liable to its policyholders for the portion 

reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance 

agreements. 

 

32.6 Sensitivity of underwriting profit  

 

The Company does not foresee any adverse change in the contribution of insurance profit due to the following 

reasons: 

 

• The Company has an overall risk retention level of 41% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 

46%). This is mainly due to low retention levels in general accident, fire and engineering. However, 

for other lines of business, the Company is adequately covered by excess of loss reinsurance programs 

to guard against major financial impact. 

 

• The Company has commission income of AED 15,439,522 in 2021 (2020: AED 15,856,373) 

predominantly from the reinsurance placement which remains a comfortable source of income. 

 

Because of low risk retention of 41% during the year (2020: 46%) of the volume of the business and limited 

exposure in high retention areas such as motor, the Company is comfortable to maintain an overall net loss 

ratio of 23.89% (2020: 14.46%) and does not foresee any serious financial impact in the net underwriting 

profit. 

 

32.7 Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak and its impact on the Company 
 

With the recent and rapid development of the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak, the world economy 

entered a period of unprecedented health care crisis that has already caused considerable global disruption in 

business activities and everyday life. Certain countries including the United Arab Emirates (UAE) have 

adopted extraordinary and economically costly containment measures and have required companies to limit or 

even suspend normal business operations.  

 

Management has considered the unique circumstances and the risk exposures of the Company that could have 

a material impact on the business operations and has concluded that the main impacts on the Company’s 

profitability/liquidity position may arise from:  
 

• recoverability of premium and insurance balances receivable, 

• unavailability of personnel, 

• reduction in gross premium due to non-renewal of policies,  

• provision for outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported, 

• fair value measurement of financial instruments and investment properties held by the Company. 
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32. Insurance risk (continued) 
 

32.7 Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak and its impact on the Company (continued) 
 

The Company is required to assess adequacy of insurance contract liabilities at each reporting date. Due to 

exceptional circumstance and uncertain market conditions, the Company's actuary had special considerations 

on inputs and assumption for assessment of technical reserves with reference to assessment of company's 

exposure, insurance contract inclusion and exclusion clauses related to pandemic, potential irregular claim 

ratios, etc. 
 

Substantial portfolio of the Company consists of investments that are carried at amortised cost which 

approximate their fair market value. The Company believes that the carrying value include the impact of Covid 

19 and hence the investment portfolio is adjusted for the impact of Covid 19.  
 

Based on the above consideration, management has concluded that there is no significant impact on the 

Company’s profitability position as at reporting date.  
 

Further, the Company has performed stress testing as required by the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates 

(“CBUAE”) approved by the Board of Directors, who are satisfied that the Company will continue to operate 

as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

Management will continue to monitor the situation and, will take necessary and appropriate actions on a timely 

basis to respond to this unprecedented situation.  
 

 

33. Capital risk management  

 

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:  

 

• to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by U.A.E. Federal Law No. 6 of 2007, on 

Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations.  

• to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and 

• to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the 

level of risk. 
 

In U.A.E., Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates (“CBUAE”) specifies the minimum amount and type of 

capital that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital 

(presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year. 

 

As per Article (8) of Section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in UAE, the Company 

shall at all times comply with the requirement of solvency margins.  
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33. Capital risk management (continued) 

 

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had a solvency surplus of AED 309.6 million (2020: AED 243.2 

million) as compared to the Minimum Capital requirements of AED 100 million (2020: AED 100 million).  

  

  2021 2020 

 AED AED  

      
Minimum Capital requirement (MCR)  100,000,000 100,000,000 

Solvency Capital requirement (SCR)  143,753,744 136,740,415 

Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF)  47,917,915 45,580,138 

Own Funds  - - 

Basic Own Funds  409,587,624 343,172,593 

Ancillary Own Funds  - - 

MCR Solvency Margin Surplus  309,587,624 243,172,593 

SCR Solvency Margin Surplus  265,833,881 206,432,178 

MGF Solvency Margin Surplus  361,669,710 297,592,455 

 

 

34. Financial instruments  
 

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, 

reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its 

investment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance and investment 

contracts. The most important components of this financial risk are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign 

currency risk and credit risk. 

 

34.1 Significant accounting policies 
 

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the 

basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of 

financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. 
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34. Financial instruments (continued) 

 

34.2 Classification of financial instruments  
 

The tables below sets out the Company’s classification for each class of financial assets and liabilities and 

their carrying amount as at 31 December 2021: 
 

 
  

FVOCI 

Amortised 

cost 

 

Total 

  AED AED AED 

     

Financial assets     

Investments at amortised cost (Note 8.1) - 333,077,974 333,077,974 

Investments carried at FVOCI (Note 8.2) 6,888,342 - 6,888,342 

Reinsurance contract assets (Note 10) - 160,402,854 160,402,854 

Premium and insurance balance receivable 

(Note 12) 

 

- 

 

80,691,232 

 

80,691,232 

Other receivables and prepayments (excluding 

prepayments) (Note 13) 

 

- 

 

22,202,123 

 

22,202,123 

Loans guaranteed by life insurance policies 

(Note 9) 

 

- 

 

45,543,850 
45,543,850 

Statutory deposits (Note 14)  - 10,228,125 10,228,125 

Deposits (Note 15) - 416,653,053 416,653,053 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) - 82,812,969 82,812,969 
                                                                    

Total  6,888,342 1,151,612,180 1,158,500,522 

                                                                    

Financial liabilities     

Insurance contract liabilities 

(Note 10) 

  

- 

 

663,150,671 

 

663,150,671 

Accounts payable (excluding 

rent received in advance) 

(Notes 20 and 20.1) 

  

 

- 

 

 

81,985,616 

 

 

81,985,616 

Insurance liabilities (Note 21)  - 70,672,128 70,672,128 

                                                                    

Total  - 815,808,415 815,808,415 
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34. Financial instruments (continued) 

 

34.2 Classification of financial instruments (continued) 
 

The tables below sets out the Company’s classification for each class of financial assets and liabilities and 

their carrying amount as at 31 December 2020: 

 
  

FVOCI 

Amortised 

cost 

 

Total 

  AED AED AED 

Financial assets     

    

Investments at amortised cost (Note 8.1) - 335,622,610 335,622,610 

Investments carried at FVOCI (Note 8.2) 5,175,180 - 5,175,180 

Reinsurance contract assets (Note 10) - 192,691,454 192,691,454 

Premium and insurance balance receivable  

   (Note 12) 

 

- 

 

74,924,855 

 

74,924,855 

Other receivables and prepayments (excluding 

prepayments) (Note 13) 

 

- 

 

19,948,414 

 

19,948,414 

Loans guaranteed by life insurance  

   policies (Note 9) 

  

- 

 

48,458,780 

 

48,458,780 

Statutory deposits (Note 14)  - 10,000,000 10,000,000 

Deposits (Note 15)  - 498,471,334 498,471,334 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16)  - 48,691,929 48,691,929 
                                                                    

Total  5,175,180 1,228,809,376 1,233,984,556 

                                                                    

Financial liabilities     

Insurance contract liabilities 

(Note 10) 

  

- 

 

742,809,089 

 

742,809,089 

Accounts payable (excluding 

rent received in advance) 

(Notes 20 and 20.1) 

  

 

- 

 

 

82,514,588 

 

 

82,514,588 

Insurance liabilities (Note 21)  - 74,436,991 74,436,991 

                                                                    

Total  - 899,760,668 899,760,668 
                                                                    

 

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the 

financial statements approximate their fair values, except for the investments at amortised cost and disclosed 

in Note 8 of these financial statements. 
 

34.3 Fair value measurements 
 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows: 

• The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded 

on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of the 

business on the reporting date. 
 

• The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with 

generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable 

current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments. 
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 

estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 

takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 

into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 
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34. Financial instruments (continued) 

 

34.4 Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost 

 

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at 

amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values except for financial investments measured 

at amortised cost of which fair value is determined based on the quoted market prices and disclosed in Note 8 of 

these financial statements. 

 

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value 

 

34.4.1 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position  

 

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined: 

 
Financial 

assets 

Fair value as at Fair 

value 

hierarchy 

Valuation 

techniques and 

key inputs 

Significant 

unobservable 

input 

Relationship 

of 

unobservable 

inputs to fair 

value 

2021 2020 

 AED AED 

       

Quoted equity 

securities 

6,888,342 5,175,180 Level 1 Quoted bid 

prices in an 

active market. 

None. NA 

 

There were no transfers between each of level during the period. There are no financial liabilities which should be 

measured at fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table. 

 

34.5 Market risk 

 

The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates 

and interest rates.  

 

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Company’s exposure 

to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.  

 

34.6 Foreign currency risk  

 

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial assets and financial liabilities are 

denominated in Arab Emirates Dirhams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Dollars to which the Dirham is fixed. 

 

34.7 Credit risk  

 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 

loss to the Company.  

 

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:  

 

• reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities; 

• amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid; 

• amounts due from insurance contract holders; and 

• amounts due from insurance intermediaries;  
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34.7 Credit risk (continued) 

 

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the 

risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are 

continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved 

counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by 

Management annually.  

 

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as 

primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment 

to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their 

financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.  

 

The Company maintains records of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts 

regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the 

right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information 

reported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables and subsequent 

write-offs. Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are collected within the ongoing 

monitoring of the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous 

groups of policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the 

Company.  

 

The following table provides an age analysis of premium and insurance balance receivables: 

 
31 December 2021 Neither past 

due nor 

impaired 

 

3 to  

6 months  

 

7 to  

9 months 

 

10 to  

12 months 

 

More than 

12 months 

  

 

    Total 

     AED     AED   AED    AED    AED    AED 

       

Gross carrying amount –  

   insurance and reinsurance  

   receivables 

 

 

36,844,470 

 

 

25,949,832 

 

 

5,549,472 

 

 

4,787,894 

 

 

11,046,131 

 

 

84,177,799 

Provision for impairment 

   (Note 12.1) 

 

- 

 

(6,656) 

 

(22,769) 

 

(424,281) 

 

(3,032,861) 

 

(3,486,567) 

                                                                                                                          

Net  36,844,470 25,943,176 5,526,703 4,363,613 8,013,270 80,691,232 

                                                                                                                               
       

 
31 December 2020 Neither past 

due nor 

impaired 

 

3 to  

6 months  

 

7 to  

9 months 

 

10 to  

12 months 

 

More than  

12 months 

 

 

     Total 

     AED     AED   AED    AED    AED    AED 

       

Gross carrying amount –  

   insurance and reinsurance  

   receivables 

 

 

46,093,503 

 

 

14,188,388 

 

 

6,457,574 

 

 

2,015,274 

 

 

9,442,569 

 

 

78,197,308 

Provision for impairment 

   (Note 12.1) 

 

- 

 

(6,247) 

 

(21,371) 

 

(398,225) 

 

(2,846,610) 

 

(3,272,453) 

                                                                                                                          

Net 46,093,503 14,182,141 6,436,203 1,617,049 6,595,959 74,924,855 

                                                                                                                               
       

  



ALLIANCE INSURANCE P.S.C.    72 
 

 

Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) 
 

 

34. Financial instruments (continued) 

 

34.7 Credit risk (continued) 

 

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical 

areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable. 

 

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of 

counterparties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are 

related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-

ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. 

 

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses, 

represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. 
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34.8 Liquidity risk  

 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an 

appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and 

long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by 

maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the 

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments. The contractual 

maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the 

reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management to ensure 

adequate liquidity is maintained.  

 
 Less than  

1 year 

 

1 to 5 years 

 

Over 5 years 

No maturity 

date 

 

     Total 

     AED   AED    AED    AED    AED 

31 December 2021      

      

Financial assets      

Investments at amortised cost (Note 8.1) - 283,862,766 49,215,208 - 333,077,974 

Investments earned at FVOCI (Note 8.2) - - - 6,888,342 6,888,342 

Reinsurance contract assets (Note 10) 160,116,125 286,729 - - 160,402,854 

Premium and insurance balance receivables  

   (Note 12) 

 

80,691,232 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

80,691,232 

Other receivables and prepayments (excluding 

prepayments) (Note 13) 

 

22,202,123 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

22,202,123 

Loans guaranteed by life insurance policies  

   (Note 9) 

 

- 

 

45,543,850 

 

- 

 

- 

 

45,543,850 

Deposits (Note 15) 353,064,944 63,588,109 - - 416,653,053 

Statutory deposits (Note 14) - - - 10,228,125 10,228,125 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) 82,812,969 - - - 82,812,969 

                                                                                                          

 698,887,393 393,281,454 49,215,208 17,116,467 1,158,500,522 

                                                                                                             
      

Financial liabilities      

Insurance contract liabilities (Note 10) 183,870,960 1,064,580 - 478,215,131 663,150,671 

Accounts payable (excluding rent received in  

   advance and premium received in advance)  

   (Notes 20 and 20.1) 

 

 

81,985,616 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

 

 

81,985,616 

Insurance liabilities (Note 21) 70,672,128 - - - 70,672,128 

                                                                                                          

 336,528,704 1,064,580 - 478,215,131 815,808,415 
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34.8 Liquidity risk (continued) 

 

The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual 

repayment arrangements was as follows: 

 
 Less than  

1 year 

 

1 to 5 years 

 

Over 5 years 

No maturity 

date 

 

     Total 

     AED   AED    AED    AED    AED 

31 December 2020      

      

Financial assets      

Investments at amortised cost (Note 8.1) - 295,101,546 40,521,064 - 335,622,610 

Investments earned at FVOCI (Note 8.2) - - - 5,175,180 5,175,180 

Reinsurance contract assets (Note 10) 192,374,743 316,711 - - 192,691,454 

Premium and insurance balance receivables  

   (Note 12) 

 

74,924,855 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

74,924,855 

Other receivables and prepayments (excluding 

prepayments) (Note 13) 

 

19,948,414 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

19,948,414 

Loans guaranteed by life insurance policies  

   (Note 9) 

 

- 

 

48,458,780 

 

- 

 

- 

 

48,458,780 

Deposits (Note 15) 435,360,698 63,110,636 - - 498,471,334 

Statutory deposits (Note 14) - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 16) 48,691,929 - - - 48,691,929 

                                                                                                      

 771,300,639 406,987,673 40,521,064 15,175,180 1,233,984,556 

                                                                                                          
      

Financial liabilities      

Insurance contract liabilities (Note 10) 231,462,811 1,788,920 - 509,557,358 742,809,089 

Accounts payable (excluding rent received in  

   advance and premium received in advance)  

   (Notes 20 and 20.1) 

 

 

82,514,588 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

 

 

82,514,588 

Insurance liabilities (Note 21) 74,436,991 - - - 74,436,991 

                                                                                                      

 388,414,390 1,788,920 - 509,557,358 899,760,668 

                                                                                                          
 

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits and debt instruments. At 31 December 

2021, deposits carried interest at the range of 0.45% to 5.25% per annum (2020: 0.93% to 5.25% per annum). 

At 31 December 2021, debt instruments carried interest at the range of 4.75% to 7.50% per annum (2020: 

4.75% to 7.50% per annum) 
 

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower throughout the year and all other variables were held 

constant, the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and equity as at 31 December 2021 

would increase/decrease by approximately AED 4,027,515 (2020: AED 4,462,764). The Company’s 

sensitivity to interest rates has not changed significantly from the prior year. 
 

34.9 Equity price risk 
 

34.9.1 Sensitivity analysis 
 

At the end of the reporting period, if the equity prices are 10% higher/lower as per the assumptions mentioned 

below and all the other variables were held constant, the Company’s: 

• Other comprehensive income and equity would have increased/decreased by AED 688,834 (2020: AED 

517,517). 
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34. Financial instruments (continued) 

 

34.9 Equity price risk (continued) 

 

34.9.2   Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis 

 

• The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. 

• At the end of the reporting period, if equity prices are 10% higher/lower on the market value 

uniformly for all equities while all other variables are held constant, the impact on profit or loss and 

equity has been shown above. 

 

A 10% change in equity prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event. Company 

does not have any impact on profit or loss due to sensitivity of equity prices. 

 

 

35. Dividend 

 

At the Annual General Meeting held on 12 April 2021, the Shareholders approved a cash dividend of AED 30 

million at AED 30 per share for 2020 (2020: AED 30 million at AED 30 per share for 2019). 

 

The Board of Directors propose that a dividend of AED 30 per share amounting to AED 30 million be paid to 

shareholders for 2021 which is subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and have 

not been included as a liability in these financial statements.  

 

 

36. Approval of the financial statements 

 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 8 March 2022. 
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ABOUT THIS REPORT(GRI 102-1, GRI 102-45, GRI 102-46, GRI 102-

48, GRI 102-49, GRI 102-50, GRI 102-51, GRI 102-52, GRI 102-53, GRI 102-54, GRI 102-56, G8, G9, G10) 

 

This is the second Sustainability Report issued by Alliance Insurance P.S.C. 
following its inaugural report for the year 2020.  

 
This report covers the period between January 1, and December 31 2021, unless 
stated otherwise. 

The report discloses the Company’s performance related to economic as well as 
environmental, social, governance (ESG) factors for the year 2021. The report can 

be read in conjunction with the company’s 2021 Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Corporate Governance Report to obtain a comprehensive and 
complete overview of the Company. 

REPORTING SCOPE 

Alliance Insurance P.S.C. is a public shareholding Company established in Dubai 
on July 1, 1975 as a limited liability company under the name of Credit and 

Commerce Insurance Company. The Company was converted to a Public 
Shareholding Company in January 1995 in accordance with the UAE Federal 

Commercial Companies Law No. (8) of 1984 (as amended), after having been 
reincorporated in Dubai, under an Emiri Decree, on January 6, 1982 as a limited 
liability company. Alliance Insurance P.S.C. was listed on the Dubai Financial 

Market on July 4, 2005. 
 

Alliance Insurance P.S.C. is headquartered in Warba Centre, Abu Baker Al 
Siddique Road, 2nd Floor, Dubai - United Arab Emirates. 
 

In addition to its headquarters, Alliance operates five branches throughout the 
UAE, including two other branches in Dubai (Warba Centre and Jebel Ali), two in 

Abu Dhabi (Abu Dhabi City and Al Ain), and one in Sharjah. All branches fall within 
the scope of this report. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, and unless 
otherwise stated, we take operational control as the boundary for reporting. 

 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the GRI Standards (GRI): Core 

option, as well as with the Dubai Financial Market’s (DFM) ESG metrics. In 
addition, the report outlines Alliance Insurance P.S.C.’s alignment with the 

Sustainable Development Goals as well as the UAE Centennial Plan 2071. 
 
The GRI Content Index at the end of the report also includes our alignment with 

the DFM ESG disclosures. 
 

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE 

The content of this report has been reviewed and validated by the Company’s 
internal audit function. 
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On the other hand, all financial figures extracted from any of our financial 
statements have been independently audited by internationally recognised audit 

firms. 
 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Forward-looking statements involve uncertainty given the many external factors 
that could impact the environment in which the Company operates. 

 
The Company holds no obligation to publicly update or revise its forward-looking 
statements throughout the coming fiscal year except as required by applicable 

laws and regulations. It is, therefore, not within the scope of our internal audit 
team to form an opinion on these forward-looking statements. 

 

COMMUNICATION & FEEDBACK 

For any queries or feedback about this report, please contact: 
 

Name: Hanan Alarai 
Email:  hanan.ali@alliance-uae.com 

Phone:  04-6051150 
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A WORD FROM OUR CEO (GRI 102-14) 
While the world bounced back in 2021 from the worst effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic, the global economy continued to see significant disruptions. 

Amidst the many challenges this unprecedented situation poses, governments and 
businesses have found innovative ways to maintain their operations and allow people 
to go about their daily lives. 

Practices that seemed almost unthinkable just a couple of years ago have already 
become second nature to many of us. Virtual business meetings became the norm 
rather than the exception. Remote learning is now a reality for students worldwide, 

thanks to e-learning platforms. Moreover, we have witnessed the rise of telemedicine, 
allowing the delivery of health-related services through online platforms. 

The pandemic proved that humanity possesses a remarkable resilience to adapt and 
innovate in the face of significant challenges by turning obstacles into an advantage. 

As a result, we see the rapid adoption of digital technologies across most business 
sectors, accelerating a transition that began long before the pandemic. 
 

Alliance Insurance has also used this challenge as an opportunity to improve its 
services, make them more accessible, and introduce innovative new products. Most 
recently, in partnership with one of the largest reinsurers in the world, Alliance was 

the first to bring a COVID-19 travel insurance coverage to the UAE market through 
our online services. 
 

We fully intend to maintain the momentum of our digitalization journey by fast-
tracking our online offering and developing new applications to streamline services. 
Innovation has been at the forefront of our business strategy. We will continue 

introducing innovative new products that provide our clients with solutions that meet 
their needs. Digital transformation supports easier access and efficient delivery of 

services and helps address the world’s biggest challenges. Climate change impacts 
insurance companies on both sides of the balance sheet through technical 
underwriting and investment activities. The insurance industry must manage such risk 

from a physical and transitional perspective. 
 
The UAE pledged to become a net-zero carbon economy by 2050. Led by the Ministry 

of Climate Change and Environment, all government stakeholders updating their 
strategic plans to support this transition. However, government efforts will ultimately 
cascade down through legislative decrees to the private sector to reduce the 

dangerous impact on global climate. Therefore, companies must align their strategies 
and practices with the net-zero commitment to maintain a competitive edge and do 
their share in combating climate change. 

 
It is not too late to avoid the worst impacts of climate change and reduce associated 
risks. But to do so, every organization must play its part and take urgent steps to 

embed climate action into their business strategies. As we continue integrating 
material ESG factors into our business model and enhancing our sustainability 
reporting, we are committed to doing our part by reducing our environmental impact 

and to ensure a better tomorrow for future generations.       
 
Aimen Saba Azara 

Executive Board Member & CEO 
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WHO WE ARE (GRI 102-2, GRI 102-3, GRI 102-4, GRI 102-5, GRI 102-6, GRI 102-

7, GRI 102-12, GRI 102-13, GRI 102-16, GRI 102-18) 

OUR PROFILE & BUSINESS PILLARS 

Alliance Insurance P.S.C. (Alliance) has been a leader in the UAE insurance market 

for more than 46 years. We are proud to be the insurance partner of choice for 
many corporate and individual customers. We have nurtured long-standing 

relationships with our clients, working hard to earn their trust by consistently 
delivering outstanding levels of customer service. Our talented team of 
professionals offers expert advice and innovative, tailor-made risk-management 

solutions to meet all customer needs.  
 

Our successful track record and steady financial performance throughout our 
many years of operation has allowed us to build strategic partnerships with some 
of the largest and most reputable reinsurers in the world. We strive to strengthen 

and grow these relationships to consolidate our market position and offering, for 
the benefit of our clients. 

 
Our brand reputation is synonymous with stability, reliability, and credibility. 
 

OUR OPERATIONS 
 

Alliance offers products covering three main service lines: Life Insurance, Health 
Insurance, and General Insurance.  

 
We offer both individual and group insurance under the Life and Health service 
lines, while under General Insurance we cover medical, fire, motor, marine and 

other specialized insurance solutions. 
 

We have invested significantly in developing our online capabilities. Clients can 
request a quotation, purchase a policy, and submit documentation for certain 
products through our website. Our full spectrum of solutions will be available via 

the website in the near future. 
 

Headquartered in Dubai, Alliance operates six branches throughout the UAE, 
including two additional branches in Dubai (Warba Centre and Jebel Ali), two in 

Abu Dhabi (Abu Dhabi City and Al Ain), and one in Sharjah. 
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OUR OPERATIONAL PILLARS 
 

 

OUR GOVERNANCE & OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 

 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

 

Our reputation for stability, reliability, and credibility is reinforced by a robust 
corporate governance framework. Guided by our core values of Honesty, Fairness, 

and Transparency, our rigorous adherence to best governance practices protects 
our stakeholders’ interests while also supporting our efforts to create sustainable 
value for them over time.  

 
As part of our governance structure, corporate reporting provides an important 

layer of transparency for our stakeholders. Taken together, our annual audited 
financial statements, corporate governance report, as well as our ESG report, 
disclose comprehensive financial as well as non-financial information that 

demonstrates how we create value for stakeholders.  
 

Our Board of Directors (“Board”), supported by various committees, is responsible 
for overseeing governance and ensuring that robust internal control systems are 

in place.  
 
The Audit Committee, through the internal audit function, is responsible for 

ensuring that the highest levels of compliance, risk management, and business 
ethics are maintained at the operational level. 

•Our partnerships with world-class reinsurance companies
provide our clients with peace of mind, knowing that their
policies are backed by an extra layer of protection.Alliance 

Security

•Through our six branches, we offer fast, professional, face-to-
face service to customers throughout the UAE. In addition,
through our evolving online platform, customers can access
many of our services at their convenience, from wherever they
are in the world.

Alliance
Services

•Innovation is at the heart of our business. We are continuously
looking to deploy state-of-the-art solutions to enhance our
service offering while affording our clients maximum
protection.

Cutting 
Edge 

Technology
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The Investment Committee, implements, monitors and reviews an efficient 
asset allocation strategy to ensure investment diversification and the generation 

of consistent income. 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entrusted to manage all 
Board level and executive management level nomination and remuneration 
related decisions while ensuring the independence of the Board and its 

committees. 
 

The Insider’s Trading Follow-up and Supervision Committee is in charge of 
monitoring all securities related transactions by members of the Board, committee 
members, and management, as well as safeguarding material non-public 

information. 
 

The Board of Directors is composed of nine highly reputable members with 
successful track records in leading large organizations.   
 

• 8 members are non-executive 
• 7 members (forming a greater majority) are independent 

 
The Audit and the Nomination & Remuneration Committee’s members are all 

independent and non-executive. 
 
 

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 
 

Alliance Insurance has six major shareholders owning a combined 92% of the 
company: 

 

 
 

HH Sheikh Ahmed Bin 
Saeed Al Maktoum

25%

Heirs of late Mr. Juma 
Saif Bin Bakhit

30%

Gulf Insurance 
Company

20%

Mr Saeed Mohammed 
Al Kamda

7%

Mr Ashraf Sherbaz 
Nawabi

5%

Mr Rashid Saeed 
Mohammed Al Kamda

5%

Others
8%

Shareholder Structure
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OUR MISSION 

 

To continue to move ahead by leading through a customer-centric approach and 
offer innovative insurance solutions with professionalism and competency. 

 

OUR VISION 
 
To be among the leading preferred insurers in the UAE across all lines known for 
the highest level of quality service and reliability. 

 

OUR VALUES 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Alliance places the values of Honesty, Fairness and Transparency at the heart of 

its customer-centric business model, applying these principles across all our 
operations. 
 

 

CREDIT RATING 
 
In October 2021, AM Best affirmed the Financial Strength Rating of A- (Excellent) 

and the Long-Term Issuer Credit Rating of “a-” (Excellent) of Alliance with a stable 
outlook. AM Best said the ratings reflect Alliance’s “very strong” balance sheet, as 
well as its strong operating performance, limited business profile and appropriate 

enterprise risk management. 
 

 
 

  

HONESTY FAIRNESS TRANSPARENCY 
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SUPPORT FOR THE UAE CENTENNIAL 

PLAN & THE SDGs  
 

The UAE Centennial Plan 2071 outlines the country’s strategic direction for the 

next 50 years. The major goals and objectives of the plan, launched in 2017, are 

designed to lay the foundations for the success and prosperity of future 

generations. As such, the plan is very much focused on securing the long-term 

sustainability of the country.  
 
Under the Plan, the UAE will invest in its youth and work towards making the UAE 

the best country in the world by 2071, when the nation will celebrate its centenary. 
 

The Centennial Plan 2071 has four strategic pillars: 
 

o Future-focused government: Aims to position the UAE’s government 

as the best in the world and achieve happiness in society 
o Excellent education: Highlights the importance of quality education 

for the country’s development. Areas of focus include advanced 
science and technology, IT, space science, engineering, innovation, 
and health sciences 

o A diversified knowledge economy: Focuses on increasing the 
productivity of the national economy, supporting national companies, 

focusing on innovation and entrepreneurship, among others 
o A happy and cohesive society: To establish a secure, tolerant, 

cohesive and ethical society 

 
 

THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS (SDGS) 
 

The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and its 17 Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs) were adopted by 193 member states of the United 

Nations in 2015 as a universal call to action to end poverty, protect the planet, 
and ensure peace and prosperity for all people, leaving no one behind.  
 

The UAE has enthusiastically embraced the SDGs and began the process of 
integrating them in January 2017 with the formation of the National Committee 

on the SDGs. The National Committee mapped all 17 SDGs to a pillar of the UAE 
National Agenda which was developed in 2014 to guide and deliver the UAE Vision 
2021, since superseded by the UAE Centennial Plan 2071. As a UAE established 

company that serves locally-based individuals and corporations, Alliance is aligned 
with major government initiatives including the UAE Centennial Plan 2071 which 

integrates the SDGs.  
 
The insurance sector plays a role in building more resilient communities by 

providing risk management and mitigation solutions to individuals as well as 
companies of all sizes. This is particularly crucial for the lower income members 

of our society and for small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) as without 



10 
 

coverage they would be particularly vulnerable in the event of poor health, 
damage to property, or loss of employment, all of which are more likely in times 

of crisis. 
 

Last year, we mapped our business model to those specific SDGs that we identified 
as being material to our business and where we can make the most impact. We 
then did the same for the UAE Vision 2021 the results of which showed a clear 

alignment with five SDGs, as shown below: 
 

 

SDG 3 represents our main impact and priority SDG 

 

Alliance also identified SDGs 1, 5, 8, and 13 as goals that our 

company can contribute to directly through our activities. 

 
 

For 2021, we have highlighted how each of the sections of this report are aligned 
with the SDGs as well as with the UAE Centennial Plan 2071, as shown in the table 
below. This allows for a comprehensive coverage of how we impact each SDG 

while the GRI disclosures serve as Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 
 

The Section The SDG UAE Centennial Plan 

Our customers 
SDG 3 
SDG 1 

SDG 5 

• A happy and cohesive 

society 
• A diversified knowledge 

economy 

Our Contribution to 
Society 

SDG 3 
SDG 1 

SDG 5 
SDG 8 
SDG 13 

• Excellent education 
• A diversified knowledge 

economy 
• A happy and cohesive 

society 

Our Environmental 

footprint 
SDG 13 

• A diversified knowledge 
economy  

• A happy and cohesive 
society 

Financial Stability 
Backed by Strong 

Governance 
SDG 8 

• A diversified knowledge 
economy 
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Alliance Insurance’s ESG Approach 

OUR APPROACH TO ESG (GRI 102-20, GRI 102-40, GRI 102-

42, GRI 102-43, GRI 102-44, GRI 102-47, E8, E9, G3)   

 

ESG AT ALLIANCE INSURANCE 
Consideration of Environmental, Social, Governance (ESG) factors is an integral 

part of our organization’s strategy and business model.  
 

All stakeholders, including investors, customers, employees, and suppliers, among 
others, are increasingly taking note of a company’s performance on ESG factors 

when deciding whether to engage with them. 
 
It is therefore critical that companies manage the risks and opportunities 

associated with ESG if they are to remain competitive and create sustainable long-
term value. 

 
ESG integration calls for organizations to be responsible employers, responsible 
citizens and, in the case of financial institutions, responsible investors. 

 
Achieving this means constantly engaging with relevant stakeholders to take 

account of their interests and wellbeing and ensure that value is created for all. 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

ESG IN OUR INSURANCE SOLUTIONS 
 
Alliance has begun the process of embedding ESG risk considerations into our 

business model. For an insurance company, this is particularly relevant as it 

pertains to property & casualty insurance solutions, as these operations are 

more likely to be impacted by issues such as climate change in future. Climate 

change is leading to rising sea levels, which threaten coastal areas, and ever 

greater prevalence of extreme weather incidents which can cause serious 

damage to property and livelihoods. Asset owners will need to protect 

themselves against these growing threats. Accordingly, we will be looking at 

introducing solutions that incentivize our clients to adopt sustainable practices. 

 

ESG IN OUR BUSINESS PRACTICES 

RESPONSIBLE 
CITIZEN

RESPONSIBLE 
OPERATOR

RESPONSIBLE 
EMPLOYER
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Having a robust governance structure and conducting business ethically are key 

components of ESG integration. Alliance has a robust governance system in place, 

with an effective internal control system and stringent compliance processes that 

are designed to safeguard our reputation. As an insurance company, it is vital that 

we respect our clients’ privacy and manage their data in a responsible way. We 

have the technology and the mechanisms in place to ensure that their data is safe 

and secure at all times, and only accessed by those that are authorised. 

ESG IN OUR INVESTMENTS 

Be it in relation to our real estate holdings or our fixed income investments, we 

will allocate a greater portion of our capital to finance sustainable development, 

which will ensure that our capital is preserved and that we are able to generate 

future income. As such, we will create the necessary framework to guide our future 

investment decisions through an ESG lens. 

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER 

Employees perform to the best of their abilities when they are part of an 

organization that treats them with dignity and respect and looks after their health 

and wellbeing. Being a responsible employer means offering reasonable working 

hours and conditions, providing fair pay, equal treatment for all employees, and a 

diverse and inclusive working environment.   

Alliance is committed to fostering a positive workplace culture because it allows 

us to attract and retain the best talent. We offer employees a platform to unleash 

their creativity so they can thrive and innovate. And we support career progression 

by providing opportunities for training and development, so they can achieve their 

potential and their aspirations.  

RESPONSIBLE CITIZEN 
Being a responsible citizen means being conscious of our impact on the 

environment and ensuring we gradually shift towards more sustainable business 

practices. This includes having a plan to reduce the amount of waste we produce, 

cut back on our energy consumption, and reduce our greenhouse gas emissions. 

We must also play an active and positive role in our society and contribute to its 

prosperity. We can promote community wellbeing by participating in events, 

volunteering, and making charitable donations. 

 

OUR KEY MATERIAL TOPICS 

Stakeholder inclusiveness and engagement has become an integral part of a 

company’s ability to generate value over the long-term. Through continuous 

engagement with our stakeholders, we can form a deeper understanding of the 

issues that matter to them and that are therefore material to our business. The 

outcome of this exercise provides us with the information we require to integrate 

stakeholder needs into our business practices.  
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We will look to conduct a thorough stakeholder engagement exercise so as to 

enhance our understanding of all material issues that need to be managed. The 

outcome of this process will be revealed in our 2022 sustainability report. 

For the purposes of this report, we have followed a similar approach to last year 

and have made use of our existing engagement methods with internal and 

external stakeholders. 

When mapping various topics, we have selected those that we understand to be 

key priorities, based on the engagement process, our knowledge of our industry, 

and best practices. 

Below is the list of our key stakeholders, inclusive of the existing methods of 

engagement and the corresponding material topics. 



14 
 

STAKEHOLDER LIST AND CURRENT ENGAGEMENT METHODS   

KEY STAKEHOLDER GROUPS 
EXISTING METHODS OF ENGAGEMENT AND 

FREQUENCY 
CORRESPONDING MATERIAL TOPICS 

CUSTOMERS 

• Various touch points throughout the onboarding 

and servicing process  

• Social media  

• Company announcements 

• Website 

• Central Bank complaint portal 

• Marketing material and advertising 

• Online customer reviews 

• Data Protection  

• Customer privacy 

• Product & service information labelling 

• Digitalization 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

• Regular Meetings, both in person and via phone 

• Board of Directors and related committee meetings 

• Company events 

• Annual general meeting 

• Financial Performance 

• Digitalization 

• Emiratization 

• Environmental impact & sustainable 

practices 

• Robust governance and business ethics 

SENIOR EXECUTIVES and 

EMPLOYEES 

 

• Regular management meetings 

• Weekly/monthly meetings with sales and business 

development teams 

• Performance appraisals 

• Company training 

• Company events 

• Data protection 

• Gainful employment 

• Customer privacy 

• Digitalization 

• Product & service information labelling 

• Training & development 
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• Company internal announcements 

• Company awards and recognition certificates  

• Exit Interviews 

 
 
 

• ESG Integration 

• Robust governance 

• Business ethics 

• Financial Performance 

SHAREHOLDERS 

• Annual General Meeting 

• Individual meetings, both in person and via phone 

• Regular corporate regulatory disclosures 

• Financial performance 

• ESG integration 

• Sustainable practices 

• Emiratization 

• Gainful employment 

GOVERNMENT 

(Securities & Commodities 

Authority, Central Bank, and Dubai 

Financial Market) 

• Direct engagement through emails and meetings 

• Local forums 

• Webinars 

• Data protection 

• Robust Governance 

• Business ethics 

• ESG Integration & sustainability 

• Digitalization 

• Emiratization 

• Training & development 

COMMUNITY • Local initiatives and volunteering activities 

• Sustainable practices 

• Gainful employment 

• Emiratization 

• Community contribution 

• Economic Impact  
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BUSINESS PARTNERS 

(Reinsurers, TPAs, and Brokers) 

• Regular meetings 

• Regular business review 

• Robust governance 

• Digitalization 

• Product & service information labelling 

• Credit Rating 

RATING AGENCIES 
• Regular meetings related to yearly rating 

assignment 

• Financial performance 

• Robust governance 

• Business ethics 

• ESG integration 
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The below table summarizes the key material topics selected along with their 

corresponding GRI disclosures, DFM disclosures and how they align with our ESG 

approach pillars: 

ITEM 
KEY MATERIAL 

TOPIC 

CORRESPONDING 

GRI DISCLOSURE 

CORRESPONDING 

DFM DISCLOSURE 

ALLIANCE 
INSURANCE’S ESG 

APPROACH 
PILLARS 

1 Gainful Employment 
GRI 401 – 
Employment 

S3: Employee 
Turnover 

Responsible Employer 

2 
Equal Opportunity, 

Diversity & 

Inclusion 

GRI 405 – Diversity 
& Equal Opportunity 

S2: Gender Pay Ratio 
S4: Gender Diversity 

G1: Board Diversity 

Responsible Employer 

3 
Data Protection & 

Customer Privacy 

GRI 418 – Customer 

Privacy 
G7: Data Privacy Responsible Operator 

4 
Financial 

Performance  
GRI 201 – Economic 
Performance 

N/A 
Responsible Operator 
Responsible Employer 
Responsible Citizen 

5 
Product & Service 

Information 

Labelling 

GRI 417 – Marketing 
& Labelling 

N/A Responsible Operator 

6 
Employee Skills 
Development 

GRI 404 – Training 
and Education 

N/A Responsible Operator 

7 

Environmental 
Impact & 

Sustainability 

Practices 

GRI 302 – Energy 
GRI 305 – Emissions 

E1: GHG Emissions 
E2: Emissions 
Intensity 
E3: Energy Usage 

E4: Energy Intensity 
E5: Energy Mix 
E6: Water Usage 
E7: Environmental 
Operations 
E8: Environmental 
Oversight 

E9: Environmental 

Oversight 

Responsible Citizen 

8 Digitalisation N/A N/A 
Responsible Operator 

Responsible Employer 

 



18 
 

OUR CUSTOMERS (GRI 417-2, GRI 417-3, GRI 418-1, G7) 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION 

Alliance seeks to deliver a superior experience for customers and provide them 

with the best possible solutions to meet their needs. As such, customer feedback 
serves as an important barometer for assessing and enhancing our performance. 
 

Our talented sales team, comprising of 50 individuals, is the first point of contact 
with our customers. We hire the best available candidates and provide them with 

the training they need to offer outstanding service. It is critical that our sales team 
are equipped with a deep knowledge and understanding of the products they sell 
and can effectively communicate the terms of the policies to customers in a way 

that is easy to understand, thus enabling them to make well informed decisions.  
 

Alliance goes beyond selling typical insurance products. We try to introduce 
innovative solutions that the market is not yet catering to. This is an important 
differentiating factor for our organization and one that customers and brokers alike 

value highly. These solutions can help our customers to solve specific challenges 
and protect their personal and business interests from many risks. 

 
We ensure that our customers’ wellbeing is always catered for. For instance, when 

it comes to medical insurance, we make sure that our hospital networks include 
some of the best healthcare providers. As for motor insurance, we select the best 
garages in the UAE to ensure our customers’ satisfaction. 

 
Most importantly, we are backed by some of the largest and most reputable global 

reinsurers, making us a highly credible insurance provider that always delivers on 
promises.  

 

DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION 

Digitalizing our operation is a top priority and an ongoing process. It allows us to 

streamline our customer service, and enables clients to access information about 
their policies, renew them, or request quotations remotely. 

 
Our IT department’s main priority is to ensure a seamless experience for our 
customers. More specifically: 

 
• The IT department supports the migration of all services onto the online 

portal and eventually onto a dedicated mobile app. There is also an 

SDG UAE Centennial Plan 

 

• A happy and cohesive society 

• A diversified knowledge economy 
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important initiative underway that will allow all internal documents to be 
digitally signed, speeding up processes and providing a quicker turnaround 

time for our customers 
 

• The IT department also ensures the security of all the customer data, which 
is discussed in more detail in the next section 

 

Some of the achieved milestones include: 
 

• We have enabled policies to be issued online, particularly in relation to 
motor, home, travel, and health insurance. 

• Customers can now get quotations, and purchase policies, in relation to the 

above segments, online. 
 

While customers can make all payments via our e-platform, the next phase of 
development will allow them to submit claims online. 
 

For convenience, we have ensured that our online portal is mobile friendly. In 
addition, we are in the process of developing a dedicated mobile application. 

 

DATA PROTECTION & CUSTOMER PRIVACY 

We have a responsibility to protect our customers’ data and ensure that it cannot 
be accessed, shared, or utilized without their expressed permission. This is our 
highest priority. Customers trust us to handle their private and confidential 

information, including health related information, and any breech of this trust 
would present a clear risk to our reputation.  

 
To that end, Alliance is fully aligned with local regulations regarding the protection 
of data. These include the National Electronic Security Authority’s (NESA), a 

government body tasked with protecting the UAE’s critical information 
infrastructure and improving national cyber security.  

 
As at December 31, 2021 we were in full compliance with NESA regulations while 

we are awaiting audit by Abu Dhabi Health Information and Cyber Security 
(ADHICS). Compliance with ADHICS is mandatory for any company operating in 
Abu Dhabi with access to patient healthcare information. 

 
In addition, as part of the initiatives implemented by the IT department in 2021 

to strengthen its data security system, we are updating all related policies and 
procedures. We now have 30 different policies in place as part of our general 
Information Security Management Policy, including but not limited to the 

following:  
• Information Security Awareness & Training Policy 

• Acceptable Use Policy 
• Access Control Policy 
• Clear Desk and Clear Screen Policy 

• Data Protection & Privacy Policy 
• Communications Security Policy 
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We have a robust data control system to ensure that customer data is only used 
by those that are authorised. This is done by ensuring that all internal roles are 

clearly segregated through the system, and that there is a clear authority matrix. 
 

We also have the necessary IT systems in place to safeguard against the risk of 
cybersecurity threats. Data hosted on the company’s servers have double 
protection. They are protected physically by means of a disaster recovery site, but 

also by having multiple firewalls and backups. This will be replaced by a secure 
cloud system (hosted in the UAE) which is being procured from a reputable 

supplier with a proven track record.  

 
Our customer-related data and KPIs: 
  

  2021 2020 2019 

Marketing and Labelling  

Incidents of non-compliance concerning 

product and service information and 

labelling 

ZERO ZERO ZERO 

Incidents of non-compliance concerning 

marketing communications 
ZERO ZERO ZERO 

Customer Privacy 

Substantiated complaints concerning 

breaches of customer privacy and losses 

of customer data 

ZERO ZERO ZERO 
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OUR CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY (GRI 102-

8, GRI 102-16, GRI 102-18, GRI 401-1, GRI 401-2, GRI 404-1, GRI 405-1, GRI 405-2, S2, S3, S4, 
S5, S6, S9, S10, S11, S12, G1) 

Organizations can contribute to society’s well-being and prosperity in a number of 
different ways. First and foremost, we do this through our workforce by providing 

them with career opportunities which enable them to support their families and 
safeguard their futures. Providing training and development and opportunities for 

career advancement are an essential part of helping employees to grow within the 
organization and achieve their aspirations.  
We can also support the development of society by enforcing ethical employment 

practices and ensuring our workforce is diverse and inclusive. Furthermore, we 
can support our local communities through philanthropic activities and 
participating in events.  

Alliance firmly believes that these business practices not only contribute to our 

society but create a happier and healthier work environment, which ultimately lays 
the foundations for a more productive and dynamic organization. 

 

A COLLABORATIVE & PROSPEROUS WORKPLACE  

Alliance places great emphasis on creating a culture where employees are treated 
with dignity and respect, and where they can feel a sense of belonging. A 

collaborative work environment is one that is conducive to teamwork, innovation, 
and creativity. By fostering a culture of ownership, organizations empower their 
employees to go the extra mile and contribute to the growth of the business. 

Employees are only prepared to do this if they know their efforts will be 
acknowledged and rewarded with opportunities to progress.  

 
In 2021, we strengthened our HR practices with the introduction of a new Code of 
Ethics and Conduct, in addition to the Employee Handbook which was already in 

place. We also have in place a whistle-blower policy as an important additional 
layer of security for our employees. 

 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 
 
Alliance is an equal opportunity employer and we are very keen to promote greater 
opportunities for women in the workplace. As of the end of 2021, 64 of our 

employees were female, all on full-time contracts, representing around a third 
(32%) of our workforce. We have seen a steady growth in female representation 

at the company in recent years, up from 28% in 2018. Currently, 23% of our 
senior level positions are filled by female employees while the majority of women 
(45%) are in mid-level positions. 

SDG UAE Centennial Plan 

 

• Excellent education 

• A diversified knowledge economy 
• A happy and cohesive society 

 



22 
 

 
We have a zero-tolerance policy towards discrimination or harassment in the 

company and encourage our employees to report any instances of these to 
management, without fear of reprisal. 

 

DIVERSITY & INCLUSION 

 
Having a diverse and inclusive workforce undoubtedly contributes to a happier and 

healthier society. However, there is a growing body of research that argues the 
strong business case for greater levels of diversity and inclusion in the workplace. 

In other words, not only is it the ethical thing to do, it can also lead to positive 
business outcomes, such as fostering greater levels of innovation among 
employees and ultimately lead to improved financial performance for the 

company. 
 

Alliance values the diversity of its workforce which covers 21 nationalities and 
multiple religions, ethnicities, cultures and languages. In addition, many of our 
people have spent more than 10 years at the company and this level of employee 

retention is a very positive indicator of employee satisfaction, which ultimately 
translates into quality customer service and improved overall business 

performance. We believe this is down to the fact that we have successfully created 
a family-oriented work environment that gives employees a sense of belonging, 
creates a sense of security, and encourages them to remain at the company for 

the long-term.  
 

TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT 
 

An employee that feels they can fulfil their aspirations at an organization is more 
likely to stay. This is why we support our workers with opportunities to continually 

build their skills and capacities through training and development. Moreover, 
continuous learning supports business productivity and boosts competitiveness. 
 

In 2021, training at Alliance primarily focused on Anti-Money Laundering (AML). 
This has been a focus for the Central Bank of the UAE which has been encouraging 

all insurance companies to strengthen their AML internal controls. Moreover, Life 
Insurance is more prone to AML risks than other business lines, and given the 
importance of this business segment to Alliance, we must be particularly vigilant 

when it comes to AML. It is vital that we remain up-to-date with the latest 
regulations and maintain a robust internal control system to ensure compliance. 

 
In addition to the above, we have developed a rigorous internal training 
programme for our sales representatives, to ensure they are equipped with 

detailed knowledge of the products they sell. This allows them to provide the 
highest levels of customer service and helps to protect the company’s reputation. 

This training begins in the office before moving to the field where sales 
representatives progressively increase their interaction with clients. A unit 
manager accompanies them throughout the first two weeks of their field journey, 

or until they are confident enough to manage on their own. 
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APPRAISAL SYSTEM 
 
We continuously monitor employee performance to ensure they are meeting the 

standards we have set for them. Through a fair and transparent evaluation 
process, all employees are appraised once a year, starting at the department level. 

This is a two-way process, whereby the employee and their line manager both fill 
out the appraisal forms, giving employees the opportunity to assess their own 
performance. The line manager completes the evaluation, detailing areas for 

improvement, setting goals for the next year, and recommending further training 
and development if needed. Employee and manager must both sign off on the 

final evaluation before it is submitted to the HR department.  
 
Our employee related data and KPIs: 

 
Total Workforce:  

 

  Total Employees 

2019 249 

2020 226 

2021 200 

 

  Permanent Contract/ Full Time 

  Female (#) Female (%) Male (#) Male (%) 

2019 71 29% 178 71% 

2020 71 31% 155 69% 

2021 64 32% 136 68% 

 

Diversity & Inclusion: 
 

  Governance Body 

  Female Male 

2019 0% 100% 

2020 0% 100% 

2021 0% 100% 

 

  Governance Body 

  Below 30 years old Between 30-50 years old Over 50 years old 

2019 0% 11.1% 88.9% 

2020 0% 11.1% 88.9% 

2021 0% 11.1% 88.9% 

  

  TOTAL EMPLOYEES BY JOB CATEGORY AND BY GENDER 

  
Entry-Level Mid-Level  

Senior-to-Executive 
Level 

  Male Female Male Female Male Female 

2019 70% 30% 70% 30% 82% 18% 

2020 67% 33% 67% 33% 78% 22% 

2021 69% 31% 62% 38% 78% 23% 

 

  TOTAL EMPLOYEES BY JOB CATEGORY AND BY AGE GROUP 

  Entry-Level Mid-Level Senior-to-Executive Level 
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Below 

30 
years 
old 

Between 

30-50 
years 
old 

Over 

50 
years 
old 

Below 

30 
years 
old 

Between 

30-50 
years 
old 

Over 

50 
years 
old 

Below 

30 
years 
old 

Between 

30-50 
years 
old 

Over 

50 
years 
old 

2019 4% 49% 47% 16% 59% 26% 3% 76% 21% 

2020 4% 59% 38% 14% 64% 21% 0% 78% 22% 

2021 8% 53% 39% 19% 65% 15% 0% 79% 21% 

 

  
Total Number of 

Nationalities 

2019 25 

2020 21 

2021 21 

 

Employment: 
 

  Total New Hires 

  Female (#) Female (%) Male (#) Male (%) 

2019 13 34% 25 66% 

2020 9 33% 18 67% 

2021 11 42% 15 58% 

 

  Total New Hires 

  
Below 30 
years old 

Between 
30-50 

years old 

Over 50 
years old 

Below 30 
years old 

Between 
30-50 

years old 

Over 50 
years old 

2019 6 24 8 16% 63% 21% 

2020 5 20 2 19% 74% 7% 

2021 7 14 5 27% 54% 19% 

 

  Employees that Left 

  Female (#) Female (%) Male (#) Male (%) 

2019 19 32% 40 68% 

2020 8 20% 33 80% 

2021 17 33% 35 67% 

 

  Employees that Left 

  
Below 30 
years old 

Between 
30-50 

years old 

Over 50 
years old 

Below 30 
years old 

Between 
30-50 

years old 

Over 50 
years old 

2019 3 40 16 5% 68% 27% 

2020 3 20 18 7% 49% 44% 

2021 1 31 20 2% 60% 38% 

 
 

  Turnover Rate 

2019 24% 

2020 18% 

2021 26% 

 
Training: 
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Total Number of Employees that went 

through Training 

  Female Male 

2019 1 0 

2020 18 32 

2021 33 85 

 

 

  Total Number of Employees that went through Training, by Job Category 

  Entry-Level Mid-Level Senior-to-Executive Level 

2019 0 0 1 

2020 32 14 4 

2021 47 55 16 

 

SUPPORTING OUR COMMUNITY 

The COVID-19 pandemic has not only had a negative impact on public health but 

has exacerbated many social problems. For example, poorer sections of society 
have been adversely affected as many were unable to work from home during 

lockdowns and this has increased social inequalities.  
 
We are fortunate that the UAE has been able to manage the impact of COVID-19 

more effectively than many other countries. Nevertheless, the pandemic has 
intensified our responsibility towards the community. Contributing to important 

causes and encouraging our employees to volunteer has helped create a positive 
spirit among the workforce at Alliance. 
 

In 2021, Alliance supported various charitable organizations and associations 
including:

 

Beit Al Khair Society

Al Noor Centre For 
the Care of Disabled

Khorfakkan Club for 
the Disabled

Rashid Centre for 
Disabled

Emirates Association 
of the Visually 

Impaired
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EMIRATIZATION  
 
Alliance is a Silver member of the Tawteen Partners Club, a national Emiratization 
initiative by the UAE Ministry of Human Resources and Emiratization (MOHRE) to 

encourage locals to take up more jobs in the private sector. The UAE has made 
Emiratization a clear priority and in 2021 the government said it would spend $6.5 

billion to achieve its goals.  
 
Alliance supports this initiative which helps build local capacities and is essential 

for the future development of the UAE. All corporations must play their part and 
give local talent the opportunity to develop and prosper within the private sector. 

This can ultimately increase a company’s competitiveness as well as increase its 
contribution to society.  

 
Our Emiratization rate increased to 6% in 2021 from 4% in 2019, inclusive of our 
sales staff. Eight of our 11 Emirati employees (73%) are female. 

 
Our Emiratization related data and KPIs: 

 
  Emiratization Rate 

2019 4% 

2020 5% 

2021 6% 

 

  Number of UAE Nationals 

  Female (#) Female (%) Male (#) Male (%) 

2019 6 60% 4 40% 

2020 8 67% 4 33% 

2021 8 73% 3 27% 
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OUR ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT (GRI 

102-20, GRI 302-1, GRI 302-3, GRI 305-1, GRI 305-2, GRI 305-4, E1, E2, E3, E4, E5, E6, E7, E8, 
E9) 

OUR ENERGY USAGE AND CORRESPONDING GHG 

EMISSIONS 

In November 2021, the UN Climate Change Conference of the Parties (COP26) in 
Glasgow convened government representatives from almost 200 countries, along 
with private sector and civil society stakeholders to accelerate action towards the 

goals of the Paris Agreement and the UN Framework Convention on Climate 
Change. The principle aim of the gathering was to keep alive the hope of limiting 

the rise in global temperature to 1.5 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels, 
as per the Paris Agreement, through measures covering mitigation, adaptation, 
finance, and collaboration.  

 
As part of the Glasgow Pact, countries including the UAE agreed to return next 

year with stronger 2030 emissions reduction targets to limit global heating to 1.5 
degrees. In addition, the conference also resulted in commitments to curb 

methane emissions, to halt and reverse deforestation, and align the finance sector 
with net-zero emissions by 2050, among others. Private sector companies will 
need to play an important role in achieving these aims by forming cross-sectoral 

partnerships that can help reshape the global economy at the scale needed to 
deliver a net-zero future. 

 
The Insurance sector will also need to play an important role in the 
decarbonization of the global economy through engaging with their clients and 

investees on their climate transition plans. To that end, the Net-Zero Insurance 
Alliance, a UN-convened initiative that many of the world’s largest insurance 

companies have joined, is ensuring that the sector plays an increasingly important 
role as risk managers, insurers and investors to support the transition to net-zero. 
 

UAE COMMITS TO NET ZERO BY 2050 
 

In the lead up to COP26, the UAE joined the ranks of countries pledging to reach 
net-zero by 2050, the first country from the MENA region to do so. This 

commitment will bring major economic opportunities and support the vision of the 
UAE Centennial Plan 2071 to develop the Emirates into the most dynamic economy 
in the world.   

 
The UAE Ministry of Climate Change and Environment (MOCCAE) will coordinate 

efforts to deliver the Net Zero by 2050 strategy and ensure collaboration at the 
national level to fulfil this objective. Stakeholders across key sectors, such as 

energy, economy, industry, infrastructure, transport, waste, agriculture, and the 

SDG UAE Centennial Plan 

 

• A happy and cohesive society 

• A diversified knowledge economy 

 



28 
 

environment, will align their respective strategies to achieve the target. Federal 
and local government authorities will develop plans to reduce emissions while also 

ensuring economic growth based on principles of sustainability. 
 

As a result of these efforts, it is reasonable to anticipate that the UAE will introduce 
laws and regulations to align the private sector with the objectives of the Net Zero 
by 2050 strategy. This poses an increasing regulatory risk which will impact all 

UAE corporations and it is therefore imperative to take early action. 
 

Our action will revolve around the following three segments: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Below are our energy usage data and corresponding GHG emissions: 

 

Energy Consumption (GJ) 2019 2020 2021 

Energy 

Consumption 

Fuel Consumption (Petrol) 162.67 120.15 111.01 

Electricity Consumption  747.80 650.81 914.45 

Total Fuel Consumption 162.67 120.15 111.01 

Total Electricity Consumption 747.80 650.81 914.45 

Total Energy Consumption 910.47 770.96 1025.46 

 

Energy Intensity in GJ per Employee 2019 2020 2021 

Direct Energy Intensity  0.65 0.53 0.56 

Indirect Energy Intensity  3.00 2.88 4.57 

Total Energy Intensity 3.66 3.41 5.13 

 

 

OUR OPERATION 

Decreasing all the amount of Greenhouse gases 

being emitted through our operation which is 

primarily related to our offices, along with our travel 

OUR BUILDINGS 

1. Doing a gradual refurbishment plan with 

environmental friendly material 

2. creating awareness and engaging with our 

tenants to ensure they are in line with our 

climate change plans 

OUR INVESTMENTS 

Engaging with our investee companies to ensure 

they embed ESG into their business models and 

maintain their investment grade rating   
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GHG Emissions (MT CO2 e) 2019 2020 2021 

Scope 1 (Fuel Consumption) 10.72 7.77 7.26 

Scope 2 (Electricity) 88.45 76.98 108.16 

Scope 3 (Water) 2.24 1.76 2.57 

Total 101.41 86.51 117.99 

 
GHG Emissions Intensity in MT CO2e per 
Employee 

2019 2020 2021 

Scope 1 (Fuel Consumption) 0.04 0.03 0.03 

Scope 2 (Electricity) 0.36 0.31 0.43 

Scope 3 (Water) 0.01 0.01 0.01 

Total 0.41 0.35 0.47 

 
Water Consumption in m3 2019 2020 2021 

Total Water Consumption 1,000.00 788.00 1,147.00 

Water Consumption per Employee 4.02 3.49 5.74 

 

 

 

 

11%

89%

2021 Energy Mix

Petrol

Electricity
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TRANSITIONING TO A PAPERLESS ENVIRONMENT 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

WE ARE MAKING GREAT PROGRESS WITH OUR TRANSITION TO A 

PAPERLESS OFFICE 

 

TARGET 100% Paperless by 2024 

PERFORMANCE IN THAT REGARDS 

36% 

decrease 

in paper 

saving 

PRINT 

CONTROL 

During the year 2020 we consumed 

1,349,213 A4 size pages of paper which was 

decreased in 2021 to 858,946 – a saving of 

490,267 pages 

200,028 

papers 

saved 

DIGITAL 

INITIATIVE

S 

During 2021 there were 200,028 policies 

issued digitally. The breakdown is as 

follows: 

Online Policies 

Issued 

Total Pages 

Saved 

Breakdown 

(in %) 

Motor TP Policies 26,883 13.44% 

Motor OD Policies 133,977 67.00% 

Health Policies 39,168 19.56% 

Total 200,028 100% 

 

 

TOTAL PAPER SAVED 690,295, THE IMPACT OF WHICH IS 

SHOWN BELOW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

91.1 TREES 
SAVED 

ENERGY 
SAVED EQUIV. 

TO 

115 
FRIDGES 

OPERATING PER 

YEAR 

GHG 
EMISSIONS 
SAVING EQUIV. 

TO 

6.2 CARS 
PER YEAR 

WATER 
SAVING EQUIV. 

TO 

58.7 
CLOTHES 

WASHERS PER 

YEAR 
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FINANCIAL STABILITY BACKED BY 

STRONG GOVERNANCE (GRI 102-7, GRI 102-9, GRI 102-

10, GRI 102-11, GRI 102-16, GRI 102-18, GRI 201-1, G1, G2, G5, G6) 

ECONOMIC IMPACT AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK  

The Alliance Insurance brand is synonymous with stability. Over the years this 
stability has enabled us to consistently create value for all our stakeholders 

including customers, employees, and society. 
 
As a testament to this stability, in 2021 credit ratings agency AM Best affirmed its 

Financial Strength Rating of a- (Excellent) and the Long-term Issuer Credit Rating 
of “A-“ (Excellent) with a stable outlook. This rating has remained unchanged since 

2006.  
 
AM Best said the ratings reflect Alliance’s very strong balance sheet, as well as its 

strong operating performance, limited business profile and appropriate enterprise 
risk management. 

 
This stability has enabled Alliance to: 
 

o Build long-term working relationships with the world’s largest 
reinsurers. 

o Deliver on our promise to provide clients with the resilience and 
protection they need and expect. 

o Provide our employees and society with value in the form of salaries, 

benefits, and community related contributions. 
o Deliver shareholder value through the growth of their equity and the 

distribution of dividends. 
o Finally, we also create value for the government treasury through 

VAT payments. 
 
This year we have disclosed our Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed, 

as per the GRI Standards. This disclosure is an indication of our organization’s 
ability to create financial value for our stakeholders.  

 
The chart below includes the following: 
 

- The Direct Economic Value Generated (DEVG), which is equivalent to total 
Income: AED 100.50 million 

- Direct Economic Value Distributed (DEVD) which is composed of operating 
costs, employee wages and benefits, payments to providers of capital, 
payments to government and community investments: AED 35.54 million. 

SDG UAE Centennial Plan 

 

• A diversified knowledge economy 
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The chart below shows the steady increase in shareholders’ equity and our stable 
dividend distribution over the past five years: 
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Shareholders Equity (in AED million)

DEVG at AED 100.50 million DEVD at AED 35.54 million 
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COMMITMENT TO INNOVATION 
 

As part of our strategic priority to be an innovative insurance company and to 
always strive to introduce new solutions to the market, in 2020 we were the first 

insurance company in the UAE to provide inbound travel insurance covering 
COVID-19. The policy covered COVID-19 medical emergencies in addition to 
accommodation expenses and provided a 24-hour emergency medical assistance 

and claims service. This product was introduced in partnership with one of the 
largest global reinsurance providers and contributed around 23% of our General 

Insurance gross premium in 2021.  
 

BUSINESS OUTLOOK 
 

In 2021 our revenue segmentation was equally balanced between our Life and 
General Insurance business lines. We intend to maintain a balanced premium 
portfolio that allows for diverse income streams. 

 
We are committed to providing our customers with high quality products backed 

by the largest reinsurers in the world and will constantly assess potential 
opportunities to introduce innovative new solutions to the market. 
 

COMPLIANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

GOVERNANCE 

Our credibility and reputation in the market have been built over many years by 

a track record of consistently delivering impeccable professional service. Thanks 
to this we have earned the trust of our clients, business partners, and all our 
stakeholders. Safeguarding this reputation is our top priority. Alliance ensures that 

all our operations are conducted according to the highest levels of ethical business 
practices as well as strict compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  

25.00

30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00

22.00

23.00

24.00

25.00

26.00

27.00

28.00

29.00

30.00

31.00
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Dividend Paid During the Year (in AED million)
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COMPLIANCE FUNCTION 

 
Our employees are made aware of their responsibilities from the day they join the 

company and they must acknowledge having read and understood the Code of 
Ethics and Conduct (Code). To ensure that adequate processes are always in 

place, we regularly review and update the Code and have also recently updated 
the Employee Handbook.  
 

In addition to the Code, the compliance department ensures that all practices and 
policies are aligned with the Central Bank’s requirements. The internal audit team, 

which functions independently and reports directly to the Board, serves as an 
additional layer of risk management to ensure compliance with all applicable laws 

and regulations. 
 
The compliance department conducts quarterly reviews to check that policies are 

updated and that all departments are in compliance. In addition, the department 
also ensures that client files are fully up to date and include all documentation 

required by the regulator. 
  
Alliance has strict controls in place to guard against fraud by our employees, and 

the company did not record any incidents in 2021. Our Employee Handbook serves 
as a guide to the various rules and regulations in place to create a workplace 

founded on strong ethics. The handbook outlines policies and procedures in 
relation to various important topics such as Conflict of Interest, Proprietary Rights, 
Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, and Disciplinary Procedures, among others.  

 

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING FUNCTION 
 
Alliance is fully committed to the highest standards of Anti-Money Laundering 

(AML) practices and combating the financing of terrorist activities. The AML 
department serves a vital function, ensuring that no entity abuses the company’s 
services to launder money, which would represent a significant risk to our 

business. It is critical that we have strong policies and processes in place to ward 
against this potential threat. Our employees are required to read all AML related 

policies and to adhere to them. To this end, they receive significant training in this 
area, as mentioned in section 7. 

 
The department has a risk register whereby potential risk is categorised and 
prioritised. From an AML perspective, the Life Insurance segment is most at risk 

of abuse, especially as to the source of the funds transferred by clients to pay 
their premiums, which tend to be higher than for other business lines. The role of 

the AML department is to verify the source of those payments and to ensure they 
do not originate from any illegal activity or from an individual or entity that is 
subject to local or international sanctions. We conduct quarterly audits on all 

clients, particularly in relation to the transactions within their life insurance 
portfolio, though other business segments are also subject to similar levels of 

scrutiny.  
 
We systematically screen existing and new clients for evidence of previous 

fraudulent activity or business misconduct. The company has two main internal 
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control systems in place. The first is a real time check which is carried out prior to 
onboarding clients. Clients are vetted to ensure their names are not on any of the 

sanctions lists posted by authorities in the US, the EU, the UK, and through the 
UN consolidated list. 

 
The second screening is done daily through an automated process. At the end of 
each working day, all active clients are screened for money laundering or other 

related misconduct, and the AML officer is immediately notified in the event of any 
breach or suspicious activity so that further checks can be carried out.  

 
These checks are in addition to the Politically Exposed Persons (PEP) screening 
that is done regularly. This requires different procedures involving even more 

enhanced screening and due diligence.  
 

In 2021 Alliance introduced a new AML policy called the “Customer Acceptance 
Policy” which details the customers’ source of income, nature of the business 
conducted, financial stability, etc. 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT FUNCTION  

 
Alliance has implemented a robust Enterprise Risk Management framework as an 
integral part of our corporate structure. This enables us to avoid some risks and 

minimise others. 
 

 
Our risk management framework’s objective includes: 
 

 
 
 

Our employees are the first line of defence when it comes to managing risk. They 
are responsible for enforcing the risk management framework, as they are the 
ones on the front line and are trained to detect and assess risks and react 

accordingly.  
 

The second line of defence is through our risk management and compliance 
departments, who are charged with rigorously monitoring and controlling risks.  

 

To ensure clear 
roles & 

responsibilities 
are allocated 
and that the 

process follows 
best practices

Ensure that all 
involved parties 

fully 
understand the 
risks that our 
company may 
be exposed to 

Ensure periodic 
reporting on 

risk 
management 

issues

Anticipate and 
respond to 
evolving 

legislation 
around 

environmental 
related matters

Ensure 
continuous 

monitoring and 
compliance 

with all 
regulatory 

requirements
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The third line is through the internal audit team.  
 

Finally, the ultimate responsibility for managing risk lies with our Board of 
Directors through the Audit Committee.  

 
Our risks fall within one of four main categories: 
 

 
 

 

OUR ERM FRAMEWORK: 
 

 

 

Market Risk Credit Risk

Underwriting 
Risk

Business 
Risk
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GRI & DFM CONTENT INDEX (GRI 102-55) 
GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

GRI DISCLOSURE CONTENT 
DFM 

DISCLOSURE 

REFERENCE 

SECTION 
NOTES 

Organizational profile 

102-1 Name of the organization  2  

102-2 
Activities, brands, products, and 

services  
5 

 
102-3 Location of headquarters  5  
102-4 Location of operations  5  
102-5 Ownership and legal form  5  
102-6 Markets served  5  
102-7 Scale of the organization  5,31  

102-8 
Information on employees and other 

workers 

S4: Gender 

Diversity 
21  

S5: Temporary 

Worker Ratio 

102-9 Supply Chain 
G5: Supplier Code 

of Conduct 
31 

 

102-10 
Significant changes to the 

organization and its supply chain  
31 

 
102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach  31  
102-12 External initiatives  5  
102-13 Membership of associations  5  

Strategy 

102-14 
Statement from senior decision-

maker 
 4 

 
Ethics & Integrity 

102-16 

Describe your organization's values, 

principles, standards and norms of 

behavior 

G6: Ethics & Anti-

Corruption 
5,21,31 

 

 

Governance 
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102-18 Governance structure 

G1: Board 

Diversity 
5,21,31  

G2: Board 

Independence 

102-20 Executive-level responsibility for 

economic, environmental, and social 

topics 

E8, E9: 

Environmental 

Oversight  

G3: Incentivized 

Pay 

11,27  

Stakeholder Engagement 

102-40 List of stakeholder groups  11  

102-41 
Collective bargaining agreements 

G4: Collective 

Bargaining 
Not applicable for companies operating in UAE 

102-42 
Identifying and selecting 

stakeholders  
11 

 
102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement  11  
102-44 Key topics and concerns raised  11  

Reporting Practice 

102-45 
Entities included in the consolidated 

financial statements  
2 

 

102-46 
Defining report content and topic 

boundaries 

G8: Sustainability 

Reporting 
2  

G9: Disclosure 

Practices 

102-47 List of material topics  11  
102-48 Restatements of information   2  
102-49 Changes in reporting  2  
102-50 Reporting period  2  
102-51 Date of the most recent report  2  
102-52 Reporting cycle  2  

102-53 
Contact point for questions regarding 

the report  

2 

 

102-54 
Claims of reporting in accordance 

with the GRI standards  

2 

 
102-55 GRI content index  37  
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102-56 
External assurance 

G10: External 

Assurance 
2 

 
MATERIAL TOPICS 

GRI DISCLOSURE CONTENT 
DFM 

DISCLOSURE 

REFERENCE 

SECTION 
NOTES 

GRI 200: Economic Standard Series 

GRI 201: Economic Performance 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach   

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,31 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,31 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,31 

 
GRI 201 Topic Specific   

201-1 
Direct economic value generated and 

distributed  
Section 2  

GRI 300: Environmental Standard Series 

GRI 302: Energy 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach   

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,27 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,27 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach 

E7: Environmental 

Operations 
11,27 

 
GRI 302 Topic Specific 

302-1 
Energy consumption within the 

organization 

E3: Energy Usage 

27  E5: Energy Mix 

E6: Water Usage 

302-3 
Energy intensity 

E4: Energy 

Intensity 
27 

 
GRI 305: Emissions 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach        
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103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,27 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,27 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,27 

 
GRI 305 Topic Specific   

305-1 
Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions 

E1: GHG 

Emissions 
27 

 

305-2 
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG 

emissions 

E1: GHG 

Emissions 
27 

 

305-4 
GHG emissions intensity 

E2: Emissions 

Intensity 
27 

 
GRI 400: Social Standard Series 

GRI 401: Employment 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach        

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,21 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,21 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,21 

 
GRI 401 Topic Specific   

401-1 
New employee hires and employee 

turnover 

S3: Employee 

Turnover 
21 

 

401-2 

Benefits provided to full-time 

employees that are not provided to 

part-time employees  

21  

GRI 404: Training & Education 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach        

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,21 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,21 
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103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,21 

 
GRI 404 Topic Specific   

404-1 
Average hours of training per year 

per employee  
21 

 
GRI 405: Diversity and Equal Opportunity 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach        

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,21 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,21 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,21 

 
GRI 405 Topic Specific   

405-1 
Diversity of governance bodies and 

employees 

S4: Gender 

Diversity 

S6: Non-

Discrimination  

S9: Child & Forced 

Labor 

S10: Human 

Rights 

G1: Board 

Diversity 

21  

405-2 
Ratio of basic salary and 

remuneration of women to men 

S2: Gender Pay 

Ratio 
21  

GRI 417: Marketing & Labeling 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach        

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,18 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,18 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,18 

 
GRI 417 Topic Specific   
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417-2 

Incidents of non-compliance 

concerning product and service 

information and labeling  

18  

417-3 

Incidents of non-compliance 

concerning marketing 

communications  

18  

GRI 418: Customer Privacy 2016 

GRI 103 Management Approach        

103-1 
Explanation of the material topic and 

its boundary  
11,18 

 

103-2 
The management approach and its 

components  
11,18 

 

103-3 
Evaluation of the management 

approach  
11,18 

 
GRI 418 Topic Specific   

418-1 

Substantiated complaints concerning 

breaches of customer 

privacy and losses of customer data 

G7: Data Privacy 18  

 

 

Additional DFM disclosures     

DFM DISCLOSURE CONTENT 
REFERENCE SECTION 

AND/OR NOTES 

Environmental 

E10 

Climate Risk Mitigation 
Our ESG policy will be drafted 

while taking this metric into 

consideration 
Total amount invested, annually, in climate-related infrastructure, 

resilience, and product development 

Social 

S1 

CEO Pay Ratio We currently disclose the CEO's 

salary in our Corporate 

Governance Report as well as 

that of the entire executive team 

Ratio: CEO total compensation to median Full Time Equivalent 

(FTE) total compensation 

Does your company report this metric in regulatory filings?  

S7 Injury Rate 
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Percentage: Frequency of  

injury events relative to total  

workforce time Our Employee Handbook 

contains procedures in relation to 

our employees' health & safety 
S8 

Global Health & Safety 

Does your company follow an occupational health and/or global 

health & safety policy? 

S11 

Nationalization 

 21 Percentage of national employees 

Direct and indirect local job creation  

S12 
Community Investment 

 21 Amount invested in the community, as a percentage of company 

revenues  

 


